




From: Candy Parker
To: Board
Subject: Recreational l Marijuana
Date: Saturday, February 27, 2021 12:00:00 PM

Dear Board Members,
It has come to our attention that allowing recreational marijuana  stores in Meridian
Township is being considered.  We hope that you will not allow this.  Recreational
Marijuana is readily available in the area without Meridian Township  allowing it.  This
does not seem to be something that would add to Township quality of life.  Rather, it
would seem to be detrimental.  
Yours truly,
Candy and Larry Parker
4361 Aztec Way
Okemos, MI 48864



From: Smita Vayalumkal
To: Board
Subject: Recreational marijuana
Date: Sunday, February 28, 2021 10:47:49 AM

Hello,

We moved from another city to okemos because of its reputation. I have three children all
school aged. 

I am very concerned about meridian township permitting stores selling recreational marijuana
near schools. It is not only putting out kids in risk of easy access to this drugs but also
normalising this among the younger generation. 

I wonder if you have considered how much money federal and state  government is spending
to rehabilitate citizen who gets addicted to these recreational drug. 

I strongly suggest to please do not give permits to these stores. 

Thank You,
Smita Manjasseril 



From: Carla Galligan
To: Dan Opsommer; jacksonp@comcast.net; Kathy Ann Sundland
Cc: Board
Subject: Opt-In Commercial Recreational Marijuana
Date: Monday, March 1, 2021 12:24:50 PM
Attachments: Michigan Statewide Ballot Proposal 18-1.pdf

Dear Oppsomer, Jackson and Sundland,

I have reached out to you individually and asked you to contact me regarding this matter as it
is not possible to have a dialogue with the Board as a whole.

Can you please provide written responses to the following questions:

Have Opting-In commitments or agreements been made by individual Board members
or the Board as a whole to Commercial Marijuana businesses regarding Opting-In?

Please provide the data that supports Trustee Opsommer’s comment in the February 19,
2021 City Pulse  “ I believe the community strongly supports opting in to the adult use
market”. 

Where is the data promised to residents regarding Medical Marijuana?  

I object to your using Meridian Township as a Social experiment for the impact of
Commercial Recreational Marijuana.  The residents of Meridian Township are largely
unaware of this Opt-In initiative.  It appears you are making irrevocable decisions for the
community based on your own personal beliefs and preferences. In the midst of a Pandemic it
is very difficult for residents to have access and input in this important decision. 

I have attached the Statewide Ballot Proposal for your reference.  This is what Michigan
residents voted on - decriminalization and licensing not a land use issue.

What’s the rush?  

Carla A. Galligan
(517) 290-2160

4367 Aztec Way



 

   
 

  
       

             

         

    

                
                  

 

   

                    
     

                    
 

                 

                    
        

          

         

  
        

        
          
          
          

       
         

          
       

          
         

         

  
         

 
           

         
         

         
         

      
          
          

     

     
 



From: james daly
To: Deborah Guthrie
Subject: Adult Use Marihuana Support
Date: Monday, March 1, 2021 5:23:19 PM

Good Afternoon Deborah- 

I hope you’ve been well. My name is James Daly and I’m the permit holder and owner of the
medical marijuana provisioning center at Haslett and Okemos Rd. We are currently under
construction and hope to open in a few months. Opening a provisioning center is quite the
process! 

I wanted to reach out to share my support of the consideration of an Adult Use Opt-In within
the township. Arbors Wellness, also my business, was the first Medical Marihuana
Provisioning Center to be approved in the State. We worked very hard to achieve that
milestone. Since then, I have spent a good amount of time looking at additional locations that
would help us serve our existing patient base as well as expand our small business. One of
those locations is Meridian Township. The state implemented Adult Use sales in late 2019 and
we were on the front lines of that in Ann Arbor. Some surprising data followed. Nearly one-
third of our medical patients gave up their medical card within the first two months. In the
following 6 months, our medical revenue had decreased by a little more than 50%. We were a
bit surprised, but after speaking to many long term medical customers, we came to the
realization that the convenience of walking into an Adult Use store superseded the effort it
took to maintain a med card for many. And with other Adult Use dispensaries opening up in
surrounding areas, the pool of medical card holders dwindled. My fear in Meridian Township
is that without an Adult Use opt-In, we will not be able to proceed with opening our business
for economic reasons. East Lansing and Lansing have already transitioned to Adult Use
facilities and we know from the data that remaining medical only will not support our
business. Meridian has approved a small group of good operators. Many of which have
invested significant resources and time into their facilities in hopes of opening into Adult Use.
In the three years that I have prepared to open a new business in Meridian Township, the state
of the Marihuana industry has progressed significantly, bringing Adult Use to the forefront. I
write this email with hopes that I can help save my business, employees(many are local to
Meridian and are currently training in Ann Arbor), and significant capital investment, by
sharing my strong support of the township opting into Adult Use. I greatly appreciate your
time. 

I would be more than happy to jump on a call or zoom to discuss this. I can be reached at
(734) 474-5881.

Sincerely,
James Daly
President, Arbors Wellness 
Haslett Gallery Inc. 
-- 
Thank You,

James Daly
Arbors Wellness



 
 

  
 

Mon 3/1/2021 2:50 pm 
Stork, Linda <storkl@msu.edu> 
 
RE: Meridian Township Recreational Marijuana Survey 
 
Here is the estimate, which includes labor and supply costs for a mailing to 
a random sample of registered voters (8000 is our recommendation) expecting 
to receive about 800 responses by web or phone.  We may receive more due to 
the communities’ interest in the topic, but there is no way to know for sure. 
 
We expect the data collection period to be about four weeks.  If we start 
later in March we should be able to finish data collection in April and 
provide a brief methodological report, data tables and a summary of the 
results by late May (perhaps earlier).  Starting in March will depend on the 
Township signing off on a letter of agreement, which we will also have to 
process through MSU Contracts & Grants office.   
 
Please keep in mind that MSU charges an indirect fee on all projects.  The 
fee is 26% generally, but if the Township has a policy statement specifying 
that they will only pay up to a certain amount (many local governments and 
nonprofits have a 10% maximum policy), MSU will accept that policy statement. 
 
I have also attached brief descriptions of three projects we have completed. 
Please let me know if you need more information regarding those projects. 
 
 

 
 
Hope to hear from you soon. 
 
 



From: Lynne Page
To: Board
Cc: Amber Clark; Frank Walsh
Subject: Commercial Recreational Marihuana-Opposition
Date: Monday, March 1, 2021 3:40:20 PM
Attachments: L. Page. Township Board. 03.01.21.pdf

To the Township Board,

I have attached a letter dated March 1, 2021 in opposition to allowing Commercial
Recreational Marihuana businesses in Meridian Township.Thank you for considering my
input.

Sincerely,
Lynne S. Page
3912 Raleigh Dr.
Okemos, MI  48864





Meridian Township Board  March 1, 2021 

2 
 

 

A decision to opt in to commercial recreational cannabis is irrevocable, and should not be decided based on 
the personal beliefs and opinions of a few individuals. While I appreciate the consideration of a community 
survey to obtain additional resident input, the scope of a paper survey is far too limited. I am concerned that 
allowing online participation could be prone to duplication or participation by non-residents.  Gathering input 
from MTPD Neighborhood Leaders is important. In the past, the Township also held community forums to 
gather firsthand community feedback on issues of importance.  

I have significant concerns regarding the timing of this initiative during a pandemic, when residents may not 
be aware of this issue and/or may not have the time or resources necessary to participate in this discussion. 
The accelerated consideration of this initiative raises questions about whether commitments have been made 
to commercial interests without seeking input from residents and in the absence of the previously promised 
data. 

Using the zoning ordinances adopted for Commercial Medical Marijuana as a template for Commercial 
Recreational Marijuana is excessive and inappropriate. For instance, East Lansing has only allowed two 
dispensaries, while Meridian Township’s current ordinance permits a total of 21 commercial marijuana 
facilities, including 6 provisioning centers. 

Under Michigan law, Meridian Township cannot impose any income taxes on its residents or businesses. The 
neighboring communities of Lansing and East Lansing can collect city income taxes from commercial marijuana 
facilities. If approved, Township residents will bear the burden of the associated public safety, infrastructure, 
public service, and environmental costs related to these commercial recreational marijuana businesses.  

Like most issues that come before the Township Board, this is fundamentally a land use decision that has 
important economic, social, public safety, and environmental consequences. Recreational marijuana business 
will place a huge, unnecessary burden on our infrastructure and the demand for public services. Unless and 
until marijuana is legalized at the federal level, please continue to prohibit commercial recreational marijuana 
businesses in Meridian Township. 

Sincerely, 

Lynne S. Page 

3912 Raleigh Drive 

Okemos, MI  48864 



From: Peter Campbell
To: Frank Walsh; Ron Styka; Phil Deschaine; Deborah Guthrie; Patricia Herring Jackson; Dan Opsommer; Courtney

Wisinski; Kathy Ann Sundland
Subject: Recreational marijuana - No thank you.
Date: Monday, March 1, 2021 8:29:03 AM

To whom it may concern:
I am a property owner in the township and member of the DDA.  I am strongly against recreational
marijuana being legalized in Meridian Township.  It’s an element that isn’t needed and in my opinion
adds nothing of value to the community while greatly lowering our attractiveness to families.
Sincerely,
Pete Campbell
 
 
CAMPBELL PRESS REPAIR
Press & Hammer Repair
925 River St.  Lansing, MI 48912
517-371-1034 Ext 109,  Cell 517-388-1403
Email: pc@campbellpress.com
Web: www.campbellpress.com
 



From: Yingxin Zhou
To: Board; Frank Walsh
Cc: Planning Commision (DG)
Subject: Recreational cannabis businesses (Opposition)
Date: Monday, March 1, 2021 7:09:02 AM

Dear Township Board and Township Manager Walsh,
 
As an Okemos public schools parent, I’m strongly opposed to opting in to recreational
cannabis businesses in our township.  One of my concerns is opting in may result in an
increase in the use of marijuana among youth.
 
Many thanks to Supervisor Styka who mentioned in the Feb 16 meeting that very few
top schools in Michigan have marijuana facilities nearby.  I checked each of Michigan top
20 public school districts by Niche (https://www.niche.com/k12/search/best-school-
districts/s/michigan/).  For those schools Ann Arbor and Grand Rapids are the only 2
municipalities, which both are cities,  that opted in to recreational marijuana
businesses.  
 
Okemos (OPS) is the #4 best public school district in Michigan by Niche.  Could you
please give us parents a firm answer on how permitting 6 marijuana stores will impact
our schools?  If approved the 6 existing medical marijuana facilities will be allowed to sell
recreationally.  Overlay district # 6 is close to Bennett Woods and #7 is in very close
proximity to Hiawatha and close to Kinawa, Chippewa, and Okemos High.  In my opinion
maintaining marijuana establishments at least 1,000 feet away from schools is simply not
enough.  The vast majority of the municipalities where the top school districts are
located just don’t have those facilities in their boundaries. 
 
The township board did make a promise to the community in 2019 that the township
wants to have one year of experience with medical marijuana before making the
decision on what to do with the recreational use.  I went back to the June 4 and July 9,
2019 board meeting recordings and I also looked at media coverage (WILX report:
 https://www.wilx.com/content/news/Meridian-Township-votes-on-smoke-shops-
512542122.html).  They all confirmed the promise you made.  As elected officials you are
just going to break your promise?
 
There are also safety concerns.  Treasurer Phil Deschaine’s presentation in the Feb 16
meeting is very informative.  Even East Lansing, with 30,000 plus students, has only 2
stores.  East Lansing has 102 police personnel ( 51 sworn and 51 non-sworn), MSU has



85 sworn officers.  Leoni township near Jackson now has 3 dedicated police offers
focused on their 6 recreational marijuana stores.  Meridian township only has 41 sworn
and 13 non-sworn.  Do you have any plan to expand the police workforce if you permit 6
stores?  Can you guarantee local residents the same quality of life and safety as what we
have now if you permit 6 stores?
 
I watched the Feb 16 board meeting.  Most of the speakers that spoke in support of the
proposal work in the marijuana industry trying to sell. 
 
I strongly urge you to put community first and continue to prohibit recreational
marijuana businesses in Meridian township.
 
Sincerely,
 
Yingxin Zhou
2565 Sophiea Pkwy
Okemos, MI 48864
 
 



From: JAMES RYPKEMA
To: Board
Subject: March 2 Board Meeting
Date: Tuesday, March 2, 2021 1:18:02 PM

To Meridian Board,
I am writing to you all concerning the very serious meeting scheduled for tonight
regarding allowing cannabis stores to be allowed within Meridian township.
First, as a Meri dian resident for 18 years, I believe an issue this serious should be
put to the entire township to vote on; not just the current board.
Next, I am writing to let you all know that Kathi and I STRONGLY OPPOSE rescinding
the current ban on such dispensaries. All one has to do is drive by already existing
“pot shops” and observe the clientele outside these places.  I occasionally drive by
the one in Lansing on the corner of Pennsylvania and Jolly. It’s threatening to
observe.
What about the Okemos and Haslett students, who will no doubt be affected
byfriends able to buy these products?  Is this what the township needs or wants?  I
think not.
We will support any trustees or other elected officers of the township (Supervisor,
Treasurer, Clerk) who vote NO to allow this proposal to occur.  For those that vote
YES,
you can be sure there will be an organized effort via petitions, etc to undo it.
Respectfully,
Jim Rypkema
2167 Heritage Ave.
Okemos, Michigan 48864
(517) 980-5265



From: Meridian Township, MI
To: Deborah Guthrie
Subject: joannemahoney0@gmail.com
Date: Tuesday, March 2, 2021 8:38:59 AM

Message submitted from the <Meridian Township, MI> website.

Site Visitor Name: Joanne Mahoney
Site Visitor Email: joannemahoney0@gmail.com 

I am a Meridian Township homeowner since 1996. We came here so our two sons could have
the education that Okemos offers.  With that we have come to appreciate the great
neighborhoods, friendly,  caring responsible people and the support of green space.  
I am writing today to oppose allowing the sale for recreational marijuana in Meridian
Township.  I listened to the Board meeting that discussed this topic.  From what I gather this is
not something that is being actively pursued because the citizens want it to improve our
neighborhoods, schools, government or better our lives.  Ron Styka hit the "nail on the head"
when he said he is always led by what is good for our neighborhoods.  This isn't something
that is good for our neighborhoods or citizens. 
If someone wants to purchase this for recreational use all they need to do is go a few miles up
the road to East Lansing.  No one is infringing on their right to purchase  and use it.  Rather
we don't need to take on the headaches, challenges and issues that will come with sales here
and now.  The worst case scenario of non approval of this is that we wait a few years to see
how this really plays out.  This is not an issue that Meridian Township needs to take a lead
role in imposing this on our community at this time.  The citizens are not pushing for it as
there really is nothing proven to be good for our community.  
Please do not allow the sale of recreational marijuana in Meridian Township.
Sincerely,
Joanne Mahoney



From: Deborah Guthrie
To: Board
Subject: FW: letter to board
Date: Tuesday, March 2, 2021 8:29:26 AM
Attachments: township board.docx

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone

-------- Original message --------
From: Peter Menser <menser@meridian.mi.us>
Date: 3/1/21 5:25 PM (GMT-05:00)
To: Deborah Guthrie <guthrie@meridian.mi.us>
Cc: Robin Faust <faust@meridian.mi.us>, Michelle Prinz <prinz@meridian.mi.us>, Frank
Walsh <walsh@meridian.mi.us>, Mark Kieselbach <Kieselbach@meridian.mi.us>
Subject: FW: letter to board

Hi Deborah,
 
I received this communication to the Township Board from Kathy and Larry McCurdy
regarding medical marihuana late Sunday night.  Sorry I didn’t send it earlier today, fully
intended to do so.
 
Thank you.
 
-Peter
 

Peter Menser
Principal Planner
menser@meridian.mi.us
517.853.4576
5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864

meridian.mi.us
 
From: Kathy & Larry McCurdy [mailto:kathyandlarrymccurdy@gmail.com] 
Sent: Sunday, February 28, 2021 11:05 PM
To: Peter Menser
Subject: letter to board
 
Peter,
We hope all is going well with and yours. Could you please see that the attached letter is
placed in the packet for Tuesday night's board meeting?
 
Kathy & Larry McCurdy



Kathy and Larry McCurdy 
2710 Sophiea Parkway 

Okemos, MI 48864 
 

 

 

 

 

Board members, 

We are longtime residents of Meridian Township. In 1977, we chose Meridian Township over other 
communities because of its commitment to providing a safe environment and placing an emphasis on 
preserving our natural areas.  

Just a few days ago we attended a meeting where Supervisor Ron Styka told us that on the most recent 
list of best places to live in Michigan, Meridian Township was number one. We would like to maintain 
this rating. By “Opting -in” to commercial recreational marijuana businesses,  we are jeopardizing that 
number one position. In the long run what little we will gain in tax revenue, will be outweighed by the 
expenditures required of the township to provide a safe environment. Besides, this, the addition of 
recreational marijuana facilities can lead to a decrease in property values and then of course less tax 
revenue for the township. It has been stated that the township would be giving access to convenient 
legal marijuana. This argument does not have merit as the township has two adjacent communities with 
several accesses to the same – thus we do not need to have outlets here. It has been stated that 61% of 
the Township voted in favor of legalizing marijuana. We are two of those people. We voted In favor to 
prevent people who chose to use the substance would not be criminalized for the behavior. That did not 
mean, then or now, that we want retail outlets in our community. We are not alone in this position as 
we are aware of many others who voted in favor of legalizing marijuana, but not in favor of retail outlets 
or other facilities.  

We are definitely in agreement with the statements made by both Police Chief Ken Plaga and Treasurer 
Phil Deschaine. It has also been stated to us that some board members have received contributions to 
their campaigns from lobbyists to promote the Opt-in proposal. If this is true, we feel that full disclosure 
of this and the amount of the contribution should be made public. We feel this should be done on any 
issue, not just this proposal. The Board is elected to represent the residents of Meridian Township, not 
special interest groups. The board members should not be accepting contributions from lobbyists. We 
do want to thank the board for their strong efforts in preserving and improving the natural beauty of 
our community. We just hope that at this time you do not take a huge step backwards and that you put 
off making any decision on this issue that cannot be reversed. The old adage “you cannot put the genie 
back in the bottle” certainly applies here. 

Sincerely, 

Kathy & Larry McCurdy 

 

   



From: Leszek Gawarecki
To: Board
Cc: Edyta Brustman-Gawarecka
Subject: Marijuana
Date: Tuesday, March 2, 2021 3:00:07 PM

Hello: We are respectfully submitting our opposition to opening marijuana stores in
Meridian Township and kindly request (1) an information campaign about the impact on our
peer and similar communities (2) consultations with community leaders, teachers, law
enforcement, legal authorities, and high school students (3)  financial analysis independent of
the analysts provided by the industry
Finally, after the community obtains the above information, we kindly request an
administration of a community survey.

Our rationale is that (1) the industry representatives presented a very weak and highly biased
case of our community prospering financially and increasing employment opportunities, and at
the same time, solving problems with illegal sales while introducing a completely harmless
substance in a secure and safe environment. We believe it is unusual for all of the above to be
true about controlled substances. For example, our discretionary income is of course limited,
so if we spend $100 on marijuana, we will not spend it in the Farmer's Market. Therefore the
net sales in the township may remain unaffected. (2) Our community is divided on that issue
with all of us making unsubstantiated statements about the impact of marijuana on our
community. We simply don't know and need to get insight into the above issues in order to
make a wise decision.

Thank you for reading, Leszek Gawarecki and Edyta Brustman-Gawarecka.

Leszek Gawarecki
Department Head and Professor of Mathematics
Department of Mathematics

Email: lgawarec@kettering.edu
Phone: (810)-762-9557
Fax: (810)-762-7932
1700 University Avenue ~ Flint, MI 48504

Kettering University



From: Nic Manenama
To: Board
Subject: Recreational Weed - One Tax Paying Family"s Opinion
Date: Tuesday, March 2, 2021 2:31:18 PM

To the board:
 
How does adding six Weed retailers enhance our already overtaxed “Prime” community?   
 
Is there a long term cost benefit for working family tax payers & homeowners? Yes, long term
because this decision will impact our community for YEARS.
 
Does allowing six Weed retailers in the community enhance property values or family Prime
community experiences?  Does it enhance our children’s schools and community experience?  Does
it make our community safer?  
 
I/we find it Ironic (and amazing) that a Prime Community Board is even considering six retail
recreational use locations of what is still a Federally illegal drug!
 
What’s the big win here?  Make it quicker and easier for residents to run out and grab a couple
joints?  Isn't there an over abundance of rec weed retailers in EL and Lansing that are readily
available to Meridian residents?  It's not like Pot is "essential" to everyday life!
 
What’s the downside of not approving? We lose a few tax dollars to East Lansing or Lansing, but save
huge headaches and costs of overseeing these Weed sellers?
 
Come on....the optics are really poor on this issue. It being driven by a limited number of individuals
whom want to impose their will on the vast majority of us.  Don’t cave to the lowest common
denominator or a small group that wants to profit and is not anchored in the community!
 
If you’re approving it, keep them next to your neighborhood!  I/we don’t want to pay the amounts of
taxes I/we do if Weed stores are added to my neighborhood or community.  
 
I/we live in Meridian Township but don’t want to give my real name for fear of being harassed,
targeted or subject to the cancel culture on Social media.

With all due respect-
 
An Okemos Family and Resident since 1965



From: Wei Li
To: Board
Subject: Objection to recreational marijuana businesses
Date: Tuesday, March 2, 2021 8:33:57 AM
Attachments: Screen Shot 2021-03-02 at 8.16.01 AM.png

Screen Shot 2021-03-02 at 8.16.10 AM.png

Dear Meridian township board,

I'm a resident from Champion woods neighborhood in Okemos.  I object to opting in to
recreational marijuana businesses in our township.

I watched the recreational marijuana study session.  I fully agree with Treasurer Phil
Deschaine and former township manager Jerry Richards that it is too risky to opt in.  Per
township 2020 Review 2021 Action Plan, "We are honored that out of 1,700 Michigan
communities, Niche has named Okemos as #1 and Haslett as #13 in the 2020 Best Places to
Live in Michigan rankings" (Source: https://www.meridian.mi.us/Home/ShowDocument?
id=22409).  I also attached screenshots below.  

Why would we put the # 1 community in Michigan on a marijuana experiment?  What if the
experiment fails and who will be responsible for it?

I'm also concerned with the survey.  The proposal should be ended by the township board right
now.  Why brought up the idea of opting in to the township anyway:  it's the marijuana
industry or local residents who have difficulty getting recreational marijuana?  If you choose
to continue with the survey I'd suggest  holding study sessions with educators and
neighborhood leaders seeking their inputs.  If survey on local residents has to be done, the
township must provide all the facts and data to educate people first before surveying and the
survey needs to be attached to residents' name and address to prevent any duplicates.

Please vote NO on this proposal.





-----Original Message----- 
From: Charles Kotz [mailto:cdkotz73@gmail.com]  
Sent: Thursday, March 4, 2021 10:56 AM 
To: Board <Board@meridian.mi.us> 
Subject: Sandhill Cranes: Tastes Like Pork? - University of Michigan Press - Relevant to Meridian 
Township & continued habitat destruction. 
 
Dear Township Board: 
 
Please bear with me, and consider how your actions regarding re-zoning approvals have implications for 
wildlife species.  Now, a migratory bird, the Sandhill Crane, is under consideration by the State 
Legislature, to be reclassified as a “game bird”.  This species was nearly hunted to extinction, but has 
made a very slow recovery.  However, due to continual habitat loss, they are encroaching on to some 
farm fields.  The solution proposed: shoot them out of existence. FYI, they do currently nest in several 
areas of the Township—for now. 
Meridian Township has plenty of cars, roads, and people.  I hope you will consider the impact of your 
incessant re-zoning approvals on the few native birds remaining in the Township, in the land that has 
not been subjected to urban sprawl. 
Thanks for reading the attachment. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Charles Kotz 
1282 Silverwood Dr. 
 



From: Phil M
To: Township Board
Subject: Support for commercial marijuana in Meridian Twp
Date: Thursday, March 4, 2021 1:05:40 PM

Dear Township Board members,

I’m writing to voice my support for allowing the sale of recreational marijuana in Meridian Township. I have seen
no evidence that this would pose a risk or danger to our community.

When I voted YES on the state-wide proposal, along with about 60% of Meridian Township voters, I was *not*
voting “yes, but not in my community”. I realize that each community is free to decide whether or not to permit it,
but since our community’s voters supported it overwhelmingly at the ballot box, I see no need to conduct a survey
that would cost thousands of dollars. Had Meridian voters rejected this proposal, then it would make sense to
prohibit sales, and you wouldn’t even need a survey.

I believe that re-litigating or subverting the results of an election is dangerous, at *any* level of government. I do
not believe that there is any survey that can reflect the wishes of our community more accurately than the votes they
cast at the ballot box. Just because you have the option to ignore the voters’ will on this issue, that doesn’t make it
right.

I’m also very uncomfortable with the entire “not in my backyard” argument. Where do we draw the line when we let
local governments overturn the results of a legal election?

I understand that people are afraid of this change. But do we really want to be making decisions for the entire
community based on feedback from citizens who are afraid? 

If you believe that this issue *must* be placed before the community again, because you believe that voters did not
know what they were voting for (a belief which I strongly reject), then it should be done as a local ballot issue, not a
survey. I know it would be more expensive, but it’s the only fair way to do this. A survey could overturn the will of
the majority of our residents who have already made their opinion known, and that would be a dangerous precedent.

While it has absolutely nothing to do with my opinion, I will add that I am not a consumer of marijuana, I would not
be purchasing it, and I have no vested interest in anything except fairness and respecting the results of a legal, fair,
honest election.

Sincerely,
Philip F. Martinez
2443 Graystone Drive
Okemos, MI 48864

Sent from my iPad



From: Paul Zang
To: Board
Subject: Meridian Township Deer Management Program
Date: Saturday, March 6, 2021 2:51:24 PM

Meridian Township Board:

I have recently discovered that Meridian police officers are culling deer in a few
select places in Meridian Township - two of which are Ted Black Woods and the
land preserve north on VanAtta from Newman. Carcases of wounded deer are
beginning to show up in backyards and are being eaten by coyotes and/or other
wildlife. It sickens me to know that wounded deer are out there suffering and
ultimately falling defenselessly as prey to coyotes or automobiles. I had no idea that
the Meridian police are baiting and culling the deer population in Ted Black woods
or any other township park or natural preserve. Deer baiting is otherwise illegal as I
understand. Shooting them in a public park is particularly abhorrent. Using public
parks to kill wildlife is antithetical to the purpose and spirit of natural areas not to
mention a hazard to the public who go there to enjoy them. Deer carcasses become
bait for coyotes who then invade our neighborhoods scavenging for food and
making our pets and small children vulnerable.

I am even more upset that police are being used to cull the deer population. That's
not what we, as taxpayers, pay them to do and if culling deer is the only way the
township can keep these officers busy, then maybe we have too many employees on
the force. Can you imagine how much each deer taken costs the township with
police officers killing them? 

Like it or not, coyotes have brought back a natural balance of nature. While I think
death by coyote is worse than death by cop, it is still a more natural way to control a
deer population that is too large to be sustainable. Coyotes normally target fawns
who succumb faster than adult deer but, here I go, feeling sympathetic for these cute
little victims. I'd feel worse if cops were killing fawns.

Sincerely,

Paul R. Zang
pzang4920@gmail.com





From: Frank Walsh
To: ronstyka@gmail.com
Subject: Fwd: Meridian Township Deer Management Program
Date: Monday, March 8, 2021 6:02:50 PM

Board,

FYI

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Ken Plaga <plaga@meridian.mi.us>
Date: March 8, 2021 at 4:48:45 PM EST
To: pzang4920@gmail.com
Subject: Meridian Township Deer Management Program

Mr. Zang,

 

I am responding to the email you sent to the Township Board regarding the deer cull
that is currently taking place in the Township. I first want to recognize that this is a
sensitive issue and many feel strongly on both sides of the topic. I want to take time to
provide information about some of the points made in your email.

The program does not wound deer and allow them to roam off and die or fall prey to
coyotes or automobiles.  Officers are instructed and trained to only take humane and
safe shots.  The deer are then collected and transported for processing.  The Township
deer cull has provided over 4200 lbs. of processed venison to area food banks. The
officers remove the entire deer leaving no carcasses or remains behind.

The Township has chosen to use the police department to conduct the cull for many
reasons. The police are very familiar with the community and safety is of utmost
importance. Utilizing officers also has a fiscal advantage.  The cull is only conducted in
evening hours when parks are closed and on specific dates and times when call
volumes are low.  Officers have also flexed their work schedule so police services will
not be impacted due to cull operations.  The cost to have an outside company come
and conduct the cull would be $270 to $525 per deer or $40,500 to $78,750 for the
150 deer the DNR permitted to be taken during the cull. Here is a link to a company
that conducts deer culls for reference. https://www.whitebuffaloinc.org/deer-
management

The DNR has taken an active role in the deer management in Meridian Township.  The
current cull is under a permit granted by the DNR which allows baiting and taking deer
at night. The current number of deer taken will not decrease the deer population in the
Township but maintain the population at current levels according to DNR staff. Coyotes
are a predator of deer and you are correct they mainly target fawns in the spring,
however coyotes do not control the deer population effectively. The police conducted
deer cull does not take fawns and will cease in mid-March so there is no impact on
fawns by the cull.

If you have any further question please contact me.

 



 
<!--[if !vml]--><!--[endif]-->Ken Plaga
Chief of Police
Plaga@meridian.mi.us
W 517.853.4800 |
5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864

meridian.mi.us
 



From: john david faichney
To: Board
Cc: john david faichney; SHEREEN TABRIZI
Subject: Re: Rezoning # 21020 (Martin Investment) Kansas Road, Okemos, Mi.
Date: Sunday, March 7, 2021 10:13:11 PM
Attachments: scan0004.pdf

scan0003.pdf

Dear Board Members:

My wife and I purchased a home at 3566 Kansas Road for our daughter 12/29/2020.  We were
notified 2/23/2021 of a proposal to rezone 2 of 3 properties adjacent to ours for medical
office space.   The Kansas Road is unpaved and like country.  Many residents
 have been on Kansas, and as well on adjacent Indiana Road , for many decades.  17/18 of
local residents signed a petition which opposes a change in zoning (please see attached).   The
development could threaten our well water and the traffic increase , expected to be sixty
times,  will destroy the idyllic lifestyle of Kansas.  Of course,  depreciation of land values is a
concern as well.  The reason for the proposed zoning change, medical office building, is odd
because there is a totally empty medical office building across the Jolly Road and there is
available undeveloped land on Okemos Road  a short way west which could easily be medical
office building development.  There is no justification to take residential property away from
our neighborhood for a project which could be easily achieved elsewhere in Okemos.   

The Planning Commission will review the proposal 3/8/2021 at 7 PM.  We expect to
participate virtually. We hope that you will take an interest in our concerns.

Sincerely yours,

JD Faichney, Shereen Tabrizi 

Attachment is petition which includes the signatures of 17 local residents who oppose the
change in zoning.

From: john david faichney <jdfaichney@hotmail.com>
Sent: Friday, March 5, 2021 1:20 PM
To: commission@meridian.mi.us <commission@meridian.mi.us>
Cc: menser@meridian.mi.us <menser@meridian.mi.us>
Subject: Fw: Rezoning # 21020 (Martin Investment) Kansas Road, Okemos, Mi.
 

From: john david faichney <jdfaichney@hotmail.com>
Sent: Friday, March 5, 2021 11:02 AM



Cc: John David Faichney <jdfaichney@hotmail.com>; SHEREEN TABRIZI <shereen-
faith@comcast.net>; celene tabrizi <highminded@att.net>
Subject: Rezoning # 21020 (Martin Investment) Kansas Road, Okemos, Mi.
 

Rezoning # 21020 (Martin Investment) Kansas Road, Okemos, Mi.

TO:  Planning Commission, Meridian Township, Michigan and Peter Menser, Principal Planner

We were informed only by a letter from Martin placed personally  in our mailbox at 3566 Kansas
Road, Okemos, Mi. regarding a proposed
development which would be adjacent to our recently  (Dec 29,2020) purchased home.   Naturally,
we were taken aback by
this form and content of communication because we had received nothing from Meridian Township.
 We doubted a clear and compelling reason for a medical office building here because there are
numerous vacancies for such activity, even across the street, Jolly Road, from Kansas Road.

We drafted a petition and circulated it amongst neighbors.  17 /18 neighbors were opposed to
 rezoning  property on Kansas Road from residential to medical office building.   A copy is attached
including 17 signatures.  The following reasons are contained in petition:

1. The Meridian Township Master Plan designates 2 of 3 properties targeted for rezoning as
residential.

2. These residential properties should not be rezoned without  a clear and compelling
reason.

3. The proposal for a medical office building will increase the number of daily automobile
trips to this property from 19 to 1142, sixty times greater, on a typical weekday
according to Rezoning Traffic Study included in application.

4. Kansas Road is a unique and vanishing road in Okemos with low traffic volume, low
density, safety and wildlife. A large medical office building will destroy Kansas Road's
most desirable qualities.

5. No case has been made to justify exchanging the residential values of Kansas Road
versus the need for medical office space in this community.  Surely,  there are
opportunities for such development in an appropriately zoned part of this community.

Given the above and the overwhelming opposition to this proposal, we ask that the Planning
Commision reject the proposal for this rezoning and development on Kansas Road.

Sincerely yours,  JD Faichney, Celene and Shereen Tabrizi.  

Attachment:  Petition in opposition to propozed zoning change signed by 17 adult neighbors.



 

 







From: Lynn Hildebrandt
To: Board
Subject: Letter to the Board Regarding the Deer Management Cull Program
Date: Sunday, March 7, 2021 5:46:20 PM
Attachments: Meridian Township Board.pdf

Please share with the Board and include in your packet for your March 16,
2021 meeting.



Meridian Township Board of Trustees 

 

On the morning of February 11th as I entered Ted Black Woods from Van Atta I found a blood trail that 

led directly to the bait pile that Meridian Township put out in order to shoot your goal of an additional 

150 deer by the end of March.  The trail led from the bait pile to the street, where who knows what 

happened and how many drivers might have been endangered.  This is the first I learned of your new 

Cull (bait and shoot) program. 

Your Deer Management Program started 11 years ago and has yet to prove successful as this latest 

uptick demonstrates.  The plan is flawed – deer will propagate in relation to the environment that 

sustains them.   A few years ago, I attended a meeting at which a then-Board member, now State 

Representative, spoke.  When asked what the goal was – how many deer did they intend to kill – the 

reply was, all of them.  This has never been a reality-based program. 

There has not been, or at least is not included in your documentation, a study of deer reproductivity in 

this township.  Therefore, there is no science-based goal for deer reduction. 

Spartan Newsroom ran an article in 2018 with the theme that Meridian Township sees higher rates of 

car-deer accidents than other Ingham County townships.  The reality is when you compare accident 

rates in Meridian Township with those adjacent, Meridian sees higher accident rates, period.  In 2018 

there were 777 crashes in Meridian, 115 in Williamstown Township, 329 in Alaiedon, and 146 in 

Wheatfield.  This demonstrates the inappropriateness of this data point that Meridian Township is using. 

The use of the Meridian Township Police in this Sisyphean feat is repulsive.  The citizens of Meridian 

Township did not vote through Millage renewals for Public Safety and Parks so that the Police could be 

coopted into something so Orwellian or so that our parks could be changed from places to enjoy nature 

to places to destroy nature. 

In the document you put together to support the Management Program the township cites statistics of 

car-deer accidents by year.  In 2013, the year with one of the highest total killed (127) we saw the 

highest number of car-deer accidents (180).  In 2018, the year with the lowest kill total, we saw the 

fewest car-deer accidents.  The stated goals in that document include reducing deer-human interactions 

and reducing car-deer collisions.  I can attest, as someone who lives near Ted Black Woods and the 

Foster Davis Land Preserve, that the current program has increased deer-human interactions.  They are 

in my yard and neighborhood all day every day when their usual environment becomes unsafe.  I can 

also attest to seeing them darting across the road between cars at all times of day since the beginning of 

February, when this latest Bait and Shoot program started.  Since the Bait and Shoot program began a 

neighbor has found two dead deer in her backyard, both of which attracted coyotes to her yard.  We 

can’t prove that these deer were injured by your acts but we can say with certainty that this has never 

happened before.  And the blood trail I found on February 11th is clear evidence that not every deer shot 

dies quickly.  Did these other two die from the stress of a never-ending hunting season, were they 

merely injured when shot, were they injured jumping over the barbed wire that the township 

apparently doesn’t have the resources to remove from the preserve, or were they injured by running 

away from the Kill Zone and into a car?  We cannot know – any of those are possibilities. 



The last thing I want to add is that your bait piles appear to have been strategically placed to optimize 

the potential for an injured deer to run into traffic in places with the least visibility for a driver.  The 

entrance to Ted Black Woods is a heavily wooded area where deer burst into the street without 

warning.  The bait pile in the Foster Davis Land Preserve is conveniently placed immediately in the curve 

on Van Atta, where cars have limited sight distance.   

This ill-conceived plan is, at minimum, an abuse of the trust of the citizens of the township who vote you 

into office and for the millages that fund the police and parks. 

Respectfully, 

Lynn Hildebrandt 

4890 Chipping Camden Ln 

Okemos MI 48864 

 

 



From: Frank Walsh
To: ronstyka@gmail.com
Subject: Fwd: Meridian Township Deer Management Program
Date: Monday, March 8, 2021 6:03:17 PM
Attachments: image003.png

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Ken Plaga <plaga@meridian.mi.us>
Date: March 8, 2021 at 5:05:38 PM EST
To: lynn.hildebrandt6@gmail.com
Subject: Meridian Township Deer Management Program

Ms. Hildebrandt,

I am responding to the email you sent to the Township Board regarding the deer cull
that is currently taking place in the Township. I first want to recognize that this is a
sensitive issue and many feel strongly on both sides of the topic. I want to take time to
provide information about some of the points made in your email.

The program does not wound deer and allow them to roam off and die or fall prey to
coyotes or automobiles.  Officers are instructed and trained to only take humane and
safe shots.  The deer are then collected and transported for processing.  The Township
deer cull has provided over 4200 lbs. of processed venison to area food banks. The
officers remove the entire deer leaving no carcasses or remains behind.

The Township has chosen to use the police department to conduct the cull for many
reasons. The police are very familiar with the community and safety is of utmost
importance. Utilizing officers also has a fiscal advantage.  The cull is only conducted in
evening hours when parks are closed and on specific dates and times when call
volumes are low.  Officers have also flexed their work schedule so police services will
not be impacted due to cull operations.  The cost to have an outside company come
and conduct the cull would be $270 to $525 per deer or $40,500 to $78,750 for the
150 deer the DNR permitted to be taken during the cull. Here is a link to a company
that conducts deer culls for reference. https://www.whitebuffaloinc.org/deer-
management

The DNR has taken an active role in the deer management in Meridian Township.  The
current cull is under a permit granted by the DNR which allows baiting and taking deer
at night. The current number of deer taken will not decrease the deer population in the
Township but maintain the population at current levels according to DNR staff.

In your letter you brought up that the culling of deer has no effect on accidents.  Below
is a chart of the car/deer accidents and the number of deer taken in the Township.  The
years 2017 and 2018 were the lowest number of car/deer accidents.  This can be
attributed in part by the large number of deer taken in 2015-2017.



(PIA= Personal Injury Accident)

If you have any further question please contact me.

 
 

<!--[if !vml]--><!--[endif]-->Ken Plaga
Chief of Police
Plaga@meridian.mi.us
W 517.853.4800 |
5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864

meridian.mi.us
 



From: Mark Stevens
To: Deborah Guthrie
Subject: Application Printing Error
Date: Tuesday, March 9, 2021 3:48:14 PM

Clerk Guthrie,
 
I am writing this email to express my sincere apology for the error that took place in the
printing of your absent vote application forms. Our records clearly indicate that you approved
the correct copy for your applications that included your name on both sides of the application.
Unfortunately, the original version had not been deleted, as is our policy, and we mistakenly
printed the outgoing side of the applications with the previous clerk's name. This is completely
unacceptable and we take full responsibility for this error. As a result, we will not be charging
you for the printing of these cards. We have spoken to the person responsible for the error.
Although this has never happened before, we are reviewing our processes to see if there is
additional measures we can take, going forward.  Please forgive us for any inconvenience this
causes you or your staff.
 
Sincerely,
Mark Stevens
 
 

  Mark F. Stevens
12005 Beech Daly Rd.  l  Taylor, MI 48180
(734) 946-5111x228  l  (800) 95-12345x228
(734) 678-5111 Cell  l  (734) 946-1115 Fax
          mstevens@printingsystems.us       
               www.printingsystems.us
 

 
 
 



From: Peter Menser
To: jdfritz66@gmail.com
Cc: Frank Walsh; Deborah Guthrie; Mark Kieselbach
Subject: RE: Medical Marihuana Question
Date: Tuesday, March 9, 2021 11:58:02 AM

Hi Justin,
 
I understand you had reached out to Clerk Guthrie with some questions about the
Township’s medical marihuana ordinance.  As the primary staff for the program I was
asked to follow up with you.
 
Currently, there are six applicants interested in establishing commercial medical
marihuana facilities here in the Township, specifically provisioning centers.  Of the six
applicants, four of those have received special use permit approval, which is a pre-
requisite for the commercial medical marihuana facility permit.  To date, the Township
has not issued any commercial medical marihuana facility permits. 
 
The Township is not currently accepting any new applicants.  In adopting an ordinance
in 2019 the Township Board limited the number of slots available (both in total number
and by geographic area) and those are all currently taken.  You may have heard at that
one of the applicants dropped out last fall when renewals were due, however we opened
a new application window earlier this year and received an application, so that spot is
once again taken. 
 
If you aren’t already, I encourage you to follow the Township Board’s discussions about
the potential for adopting recreational marihuana.  That conversation may or may not
impact the medical marihuana program.  The Board will be discussing recreational
marihuana at its next meeting on Tuesday, March 16.
 
Happy to answer any other questions you may have on this topic.  Feel free to give me a
call anytime at the number below.
 
-Peter
 
Peter Menser
Principal Planner
menser@meridian.mi.us
517.853.4576
5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864
meridian.mi.us
 



From: Frank Walsh
To: Deborah Guthrie
Subject: FW: Deer Cull Ends
Date: Wednesday, March 10, 2021 11:59:08 AM

Deborah & Board,
 
Please see below. We will have a better number for you next week. So far, about 6,600 pounds
of venison donated. I believe we are going to provide a stipend of $300 for each police officer
and public works employee involved. And, $500 to our team leader at public works.
 
Frank
 
“Best Town in Michigan to Raise a Family” Newsweek Magazine 2021
 
“Best Small Town in Michigan to Live” Niche 2020
 
“Be Somebody that Makes Everybody Feel Like Somebody.”
 
Frank L. Walsh
Township Manager
walsh@meridian.mi.us
W 517.853.4258 | F 517.853.4251
5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864
meridian.mi.us
 
From: LuAnn Maisner <maisner@meridian.mi.us> 
Sent: Wednesday, March 10, 2021 10:40 AM
To: Michelle Prinz <prinz@meridian.mi.us>; Frank Walsh <walsh@meridian.mi.us>
Cc: Derek Perry <perry@meridian.mi.us>; Abigail Tithof <tithof@meridian.mi.us>
Subject: RE: Deer Cull Ends
 
HI Frank and  Michel
 
Mike is picking up last weeks’ deer tomorrow and will pick up this weeks’ deer next Wednesday so it
would be best if we waited to provide a complete final report at the end of next week.  Right now,
we have donated 4,228lbs of venison to local food banks from the police cull and 2,280lbs from the
archery season.
 
Hope this helps for now.
 
LuAnn
 
The list of food banks include:
 
Okemos Community Church



Haslett Community Church
Saint Paul Lutheran Church
Capital Area Community Services
Lakeside Chapel of Park Lake
City Rescue Mission of Lansing
Dansville Clothing and Food Bank
Redeemer United Methodist Church of DeWitt
Charlotte Assembly of God
Williamston Food Bank
Our Savior Lutheran Food Bank of Lansing
 
I will provide final details next week.
 
Thank you.
 
LuAnn
 
 
 

From: Michelle Prinz <prinz@meridian.mi.us> 
Sent: Wednesday, March 10, 2021 10:08 AM
To: Frank Walsh <walsh@meridian.mi.us>; LuAnn Maisner <maisner@meridian.mi.us>
Cc: Derek Perry <perry@meridian.mi.us>; Abigail Tithof <tithof@meridian.mi.us>
Subject: RE: Deer Cull Ends
 
LuAnn,
Can you help to answer Frank’s question below?  Thank you!
 
 
 
Michelle Prinz
Executive Assistant
prinz@meridian.mi.us
W 517.853.4258 | F 517.853.4251
5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864
meridian.mi.us
 
 
From: Frank Walsh 
Sent: Wednesday, March 10, 2021 9:28 AM
To: Michelle Prinz <prinz@meridian.mi.us>
Cc: Derek Perry <perry@meridian.mi.us>; Abigail Tithof <tithof@meridian.mi.us>
Subject: Fwd: Deer Cull Ends
 
Can you get a good number and locations for donated venison. Thanks 



Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Deborah Guthrie <guthrie@meridian.mi.us>
Date: March 10, 2021 at 9:11:03 AM EST
To: Frank Walsh <walsh@meridian.mi.us>
Subject: RE: Deer Cull Ends

Looking forward to hearing the total amount of venison donated. Great work and 
kudos to all involved in this effort and the benefit of venison being donated to food
banks for people in need. Deborah
 
From: Frank Walsh 
Sent: Wednesday, March 10, 2021 8:08 AM
To: 'ronstyka@gmail.com' <ronstyka@gmail.com>
Subject: Deer Cull Ends
 
Ron & Board,
 
I’m really proud of the teamwork between our parks and police departments. Last
night, we took 10 deer to reach our goal of 326 deer. We have exhausted our DNR
tag limit. Hence, the amplified deer cull has ended. We surpassed our original goal
of 300.
 
More good news, even after we provide an appreciation stipend to the cull team,
we will have spent approximately ½ of the Board approved $75,000 deer cull
budget. If we were to hire a private company to complete the same program, the
budget would have exceeded $350,000.
 
Frank  
 
“Best Town in Michigan to Raise a Family” Newsweek Magazine 2021
 
“Best Small Town in Michigan to Live” Niche 2020
 
“Be Somebody that Makes Everybody Feel Like Somebody.”
 
Frank L. Walsh
Township Manager
walsh@meridian.mi.us
W 517.853.4258 | F 517.853.4251
5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864
meridian.mi.us



 



From: Lynn Hildebrandt
To: Ken Plaga; Board
Subject: Letter to the Board and Chief Plaga
Date: Wednesday, March 10, 2021 6:04:02 PM
Attachments: Meridian Township Board and Chief Plaga.pdf

Please include this letter in the Board packet for their 16 March, 2021
meeting.



Chief Plaga and the Meridian Township Board of Trustees 

Thank you for your response, Chief Plaga, to my email of 3/07/2021 concerning the current Deer Bait & 
Shoot Program.  I appreciate that you tried to provide information on some of the points made in my 
email, I’m taking the liberty to do the same. 

I’m sorry you misunderstood my point about wounded deer.  I’m also sorry if I was the one to break the 
news to you about the blood trail outside Ted Black Woods.  I’ve seen evidence of numerous of your kills 
and know the difference between a blood spot that is the result of a clean kill and a blood trail that clearly 
indicated that a deer was wounded and fled toward the street and, potentially, into the way of drivers.  I 
also know that you pick up your kills.  And I know that since this Bait & Shoot Program started my 
neighbor has found two dead deer in her yard being devoured by coyotes.  That has never happened 
before.  In my initial letter I made clear that I can’t, with certainty, attribute this to the Bait & Shoot 
Program.  Since this has never happened before and I don’t put my trust in coincidence, I believe they 
might be related.  A deer wounded by one of your officers is only one of the scenarios I posed.  Please 
share the research that’s been done on the hunting season having been extended to five months and the 
impact that has on the health of the herd.  Does that constant stress increase the possibility of deer dying 
at a rate that hasn’t been seen in the past?  And of course, a panicked deer could conceivably run into 
the barbed wire that’s not been taken down around the land preserve or even into a moving car in their 
attempt to escape. 

I appreciate that officers are able to flex their schedules but that misses the point that there are other 
ways for them to serve the community with those flexed schedules.  They could, for instance, work on 
mitigating the over-all accident rate in the township.  Here’s a look at how we stack up compared to 
adjacent townships according to the MSP site: 

   TOTAL CRASH COUNTS BY TOWNSHIP  
Township 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Alaiedon 323 253 298 275 320 315 298 297 329 299 

Meridian 931 863 901 905 858 835 988 873 777 835 

Wheatfield 132 118 110 122 125 160 135 113 146 140 

Williamstown 117 144 116 126 117 129 150 115 115 112 
 

It’s difficult for me to believe that there are not more effective ways to make use of the millage that was 
voted for in 2020.   

Other issues that have not been addressed include a study on reproductivity rates of deer in the area.  
Without that information any target number for the kill is merely a guess.  This warrants, at minimum, 
more study before numbers are bandied about. 

The positioning of the Kill Sites is questionable at best and appears to demonstrate a lack of interest in 
thinking critically about the consequences of actions.  Perhaps there was something behind the 
determination of those sites that I’ve missed, please fill me in. 

In the Township document regarding the Deer Management Program there are options that could be 
considered and are not discussed.  For example, Rochester Hills MI is cited as an example in other 
literature for the work they have done to reduce car/deer crashes.  They have done considerable 
outreach to educate the citizens about deer resistant plantings, they’ve clearly noted where car/deer 
accidents are most likely to happen and articulated that to the citizens, and they have engaged the 
citizenship in seeking out solutions.  I get around my neighborhood and to the parks more than most 
people and I have spoken with a number of neighbors and park walkers.  I have yet to find a single 
person who knew of the Bait & Shoot Program before I spoke of it.  I know the Township does the 
minimum to notice people who are immediately adjacent to parks but that is simply not enough.  I’m doing 
my part to educate people despite the fact that I have a full-time job and other responsibilities.  If you 



want buy-in for this Orwellian program you simply have to figure out how to get your message out to the 
people in the township. 

I stand by my contention that this program is ill-conceived, ill-advised, and a betrayal of the citizens who 
vote for millage monies for parks and police. 

Respectfully, 

Lynn Hildebrandt 

 

Ms. Hildebrandt, 

I am responding to the email you sent to the Township Board regarding the deer cull that is currently 
taking place in the Township. I first want to recognize that this is a sensitive issue and many feel strongly 
on both sides of the topic. I want to take time to provide information about some of the points made in 
your email. 

The program does not wound deer and allow them to roam off and die or fall prey to coyotes or 
automobiles.  Officers are instructed and trained to only take humane and safe shots.  The deer are then 
collected and transported for processing.  The Township deer cull has provided over 4200 lbs. of 
processed venison to area food banks. The officers remove the entire deer leaving no carcasses or 
remains behind. 

The Township has chosen to use the police department to conduct the cull for many reasons. The police 
are very familiar with the community and safety is of utmost importance. Utilizing officers also has a fiscal 
advantage.  The cull is only conducted in evening hours when parks are closed and on specific dates and 
times when call volumes are low.  Officers have also flexed their work schedule so police services will not 
be impacted due to cull operations.  The cost to have an outside company come and conduct the cull 
would be $270 to $525 per deer or $40,500 to $78,750 for the 150 deer the DNR permitted to be taken 
during the cull. Here is a link to a company that conducts deer culls for 
reference. https://www.whitebuffaloinc.org/deer-management 

The DNR has taken an active role in the deer management in Meridian Township.  The current cull is 
under a permit granted by the DNR which allows baiting and taking deer at night. The current number of 
deer taken will not decrease the deer population in the Township but maintain the population at current 
levels according to DNR staff. 

In your letter you brought up that the culling of deer has no effect on accidents.  Below is a chart of the 
car/deer accidents and the number of deer taken in the Township.  The years 2017 and 2018 were the 
lowest number of car/deer accidents.  This can be attributed in part by the large number of deer taken in 
2015-2017. 

 

(PIA= Personal Injury Accident) 

If you have any further question please contact me. 



 
Ken Plaga 
Chief of Police 
Plaga@meridian.mi.us 
W 517.853.4800 | 
5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864 
 



From: Cathy Liu
To: Board
Subject: NO recreational marijuana stores in Okemos!!!
Date: Wednesday, March 10, 2021 9:20:45 PM

Hello, I am a registered voter of Meridian Township. I live in 1338 Spicewood Dr, Okemos. I am
strongly against opening recreational marijuana stores in Okemos.  Okemos is a place to raise
families. Marijuana  business is not suitable for our township. As a resident, I am willing to pay
high property tax to live in Okemos because of our high-quality schools and
safe neighborhood. I will not be willing to pay my current property tax to live in a
neighborhood 5 minutes away from a recreational marijuana store. I am not against people
using Marijuana, but Okemos is NOT a right place to open 6 recreational marijuana stores.
Please be responsible for your decision. 

Hui Liu



From: Mark Stevens
To: Deborah Guthrie
Cc: Brian Bonkowski
Subject: RE: Application Printing Error
Date: Wednesday, March 10, 2021 9:29:42 AM

Deborah,  I will put this back on press for your extras and we will not charge anything for
them. Again, I’m extremely sorry that this happened. I will get the reprint to you as quick as
possible.  
 

  Mark F. Stevens
12005 Beech Daly Rd.  l  Taylor, MI 48180
(734) 946-5111x228  l  (800) 95-12345x228
(734) 678-5111 Cell  l  (734) 946-1115 Fax
          mstevens@printingsystems.us       
               www.printingsystems.us
 

 
 
 
From: Deborah Guthrie <guthrie@meridian.mi.us> 
Sent: Tuesday, March 09, 2021 4:58 PM
To: Mark Stevens <mstevens@printingsystems.us>
Subject: RE: Application Printing Error
 
Mark,
 
As I understand it, these misprinted 9,500 absent voter applications were unable to be
intercepted at the post office which was dropped yesterday. Today, we noticed the error upon
receiving the 1,500 unaddressed applications sent to our office. Please send Meridian a
corrected version to replace the 1,500 sent to our office that we will need to submit if
requested by voters. I should hope we can at least have those versions corrected and I hope
Meridian is not charged for any of this as well.
 
Thank you, Deborah
 
 
Deborah Guthrie



Clerk, Meridian Township
guthrie@meridian.mi.us
W 517.853.4324 | F 517.853.4251
5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864
meridian.mi.us
 
 
 
From: Mark Stevens [mailto:mstevens@printingsystems.us] 
Sent: Tuesday, March 9, 2021 3:48 PM
To: Deborah Guthrie <guthrie@meridian.mi.us>
Subject: Application Printing Error
 
Clerk Guthrie,
 
I am writing this email to express my sincere apology for the error that took place in the
printing of your absent vote application forms. Our records clearly indicate that you approved
the correct copy for your applications that included your name on both sides of the application.
Unfortunately, the original version had not been deleted, as is our policy, and we mistakenly
printed the outgoing side of the applications with the previous clerk's name. This is completely
unacceptable and we take full responsibility for this error. As a result, we will not be charging
you for the printing of these cards. We have spoken to the person responsible for the error.
Although this has never happened before, we are reviewing our processes to see if there is
additional measures we can take, going forward.  Please forgive us for any inconvenience this
causes you or your staff.
 
Sincerely,
Mark Stevens
 
 

  Mark F. Stevens
12005 Beech Daly Rd.  l  Taylor, MI 48180
(734) 946-5111x228  l  (800) 95-12345x228
(734) 678-5111 Cell  l  (734) 946-1115 Fax
          mstevens@printingsystems.us       
               www.printingsystems.us
 

 



 
 

Total Control Panel Login

To: mstevens@printingsystems.us

From: guthrie@meridian.mi.us

Message Score: 50 High (60): Pass

My Spam Blocking Level: Medium Medium (75): Pass

Low (90): Pass

Block this sender

Block meridian.mi.us

This message was delivered because the content filter score did not exceed your filter level.

 



From: Carla Galligan
To: Dan Opsommer
Cc: Board
Subject: Opt-In Commercial Recreational Marijuana
Date: Thursday, March 11, 2021 4:29:15 PM

Dear Trustee Opsommer,

I would like more information on why you asked for the issue of Opting-In to Commercial Recreational Marijuana
be placed on the Township Board’s agenda:

1).  Did Representative Julie Brixie ask you to raise this issue?
2).  Did contributors to your campaign, the Brixie for Michigan Fund , the Julie Brixie Blue Wave Fund or
Commercial Marijuana representatives / enterprises  request your advocacy on this issue?

You were elected to represent Meridian Township residents. In your role as a Township Trustee your opinions and
beliefs should not take precedence over our established single family community values. 

This is an irrevocable decision.  Residents deserve their voices to be heard. 

Please provide answers to my questions in writing or at a public meeting.  I have written to you previously and
received no response. 

Sincerely,

Carla A. Galligan
4367 Aztec Way
Okemos, Michigan



From: Randy Schaetzl
To: Board
Subject: deer cull success
Date: Thursday, March 11, 2021 11:48:48 AM

Dear Board members,

Months ago I wrote to you of the serious deer overpopulation problem that many of the
Township's neighborhood were facing. Jane Greenway and her team of hunters are/were
making a dent in the deer population, but everyone would agree that they simply could not do
enough to keep pace with reproduction. In response to my concern and similar concerns
voiced by other residents, you brought in the police as night-time snipers. Thanks to Office
McCready, who has been filling me in on the progress of this latest cull initiative, I now know
that 326 deer were harvested from the Township over the past few months. And 32 of those
came from near our neighborhood. That's a lot of venison for hungry mouths, and countless
hostas and tomatoes saved!

I am writing to thank you, the Board, and Manager Walsh, for making this cull possible, and
to thank Director Maisner, the police officers and Chief Plaga who made it successful. This is
a great example of government working for its citizens. You were not afraid to try a new
approach, and it worked. And it was, as far as I know, done with minimal expense. Bravo.
Now let's get even more next year!

All the best,

Randall Schaetzl
Professor 
Department of Geography, Environment, and Spatial Sciences
673 Auditorium Rd, Rm 128
Michigan State University
East Lansing, MI 48824-1117

Phone: 517-353-7726
Fax: 517-432-1671
My web page: https://people.geo.msu.edu/schaetzl/

Department website: http://geo.msu.edu/
I am a member of the Quaternary Landscapes Research Group at MSU.
  Visit us at: https://project.geo.msu.edu/qlrg/

 



From: Yingxin Zhou
To: Board; Frank Walsh
Subject: Recreational marijuana (Opposition)
Date: Thursday, March 11, 2021 8:31:34 AM

Dear Township Board and Township Manager Walsh,
 
I heard some speakers express concerns during citizen’s address session:  marijuana is
available for purchase in Lansing and East Lansing, but not in Meridian Township.  I don’t
think this is a valid concern.  There is a Costco in East Lansing vs. we don’t have a Costco
in Meridian.  Can we ask to have a Costco to in Meridian?  There is MSU in East Lansing
vs. we don’t have any university in Meridian.  Can we ask to have a major university in
Meridian?  Please keep in mind that marijuana is still illegal under federal law and
municipalities can completely ban recreational marijuana businesses under Michigan
law.  Also different municipalities have different functions.
 
Access to marijuana isn’t an issue for Meridian township residents.  One of the 2 stores
that East Lansing has is Pleasantrees, that is located on 1950 Merritt Rd, East Lansing, MI
48823, right across from Costco.  It’s only 3.7 miles or 7 minutes’ drive from the
township building at 5151 Marsh road. 
 
Clerk Guthrie mentioned in the last board meeting that she called nearly 10,000 local
residents for her campaign last year and the top 3 issues that was heard from the
residents are: fixing the roads, Okemos downtown development and social equity.   0
people said that they have difficulty in obtaining recreational or medical marijuana. 
 
I’m wondering why you are considering this during Covid pandemic?  Many people have
been stressed out and thus don’t have time and energy for this.  Okemos schools are
reopening this coming Monday 3/15 but they’re only offering 10 hours in-person
instruction per week.  So parents will continue to be overwhelmed by work and kids’
virtual learning.
 
I strongly urge you to continue to ban recreational marijuana businesses and keep
Meridian as the best place to live in Michigan.
 
Sincerely,
 
Yingxin Zhou
2565 Sophiea Pkwy



Okemos, MI 48864
 
 
 
 
1950 Merritt Rd, East Lansing, MI 48823
 
 
 
 
 



From: Tze-Lan Sang
To: Board
Subject: No recreational marijuana shops in Okemos
Date: Friday, March 12, 2021 12:54:53 PM

Dear Board:

I oppose recreational marijuana shops in Okemos. Through the Treasurer Phil Deschaine's analysis, it is
clear that there is no economic benefit for Meridian Township to allow marijuana shops in Okemos. On
the contrary, there are potentially huge costs, such as increased police workload, litigation costs, and
falling real estate prices.

I agree with Chief Plaga in opposing recreational drug outlets in Meridian Township. 

Meridian is a family-centered community. Let us send a clear signal to our children that recreational drugs
are discouraged in Meridian.  

Sincerely,

T. Deborah Sang
3717 Fairhills Dr.
Okemos, MI 48864

 







 
 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime comm  

 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY 

LEGAL AD NOTICE: Special Use Permit #21021 

Mr. R’s Driving School 

MONDAY, March 22, 2021 

  

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
LEGAL NOTICE 

Special Use Permit #21021  
(Mr. R’s Driving School) 

Public Hearing 
 

Notice is hereby given that the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian will 
hold a public hearing on Monday, March 22, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. via the Zoom web conferencing 
application to hear all persons interested in a special use permit (SUP) request.  The 
applicant, Mr. R’s Driving School, is requesting a special use permit to install a driving test 
course in the parking lot behind the building at 1575 Haslett Road.  The project site is zoned 
C-2 (Commercial). 
 
The Zoom meeting ID for the public hearing is 872 0006 8286 and the password is 5151.  To 
participate in public comment during the virtual meeting please call 517.349.1232.  If you 
have any questions about accessing the meeting contact Principal Planner Peter Menser at 
517.853.4576 or menser@meridian.mi.us.   
 
Materials related to the request are available for viewing on the Township website at the 
following location: http://www.meridian.mi.us/government/at-your-fingertips/current-
applications-before-meridian-township or at the Meridian Municipal Building, 5151 Marsh 
Road, Okemos, MI, 48864.  Written comments may be sent prior to the public hearing to the 
Planning Commission, Charter Township of Meridian, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Michigan, 
48864, or by email to planningcommission@meridian.mi.us. 
 
Publish:   Towne Courier   Deborah Guthrie 
   March 7, 2021    Township Clerk 
 
1 Affidavit, please 
 
 

 













From: Pamela Wygant
To: Jennifer Shuster; Deborah Guthrie; Mikell Frey; Brandie Yates; Alexander Quinn
Subject: ELMWSA Mtg (March)
Date: Wednesday, March 10, 2021 3:35:22 PM
Attachments: Agenda ELMWSA 3-18-21 (Mar) Mtg.pdf

Notice 3-18-21 Remote Meeting ELMWSA.pdf

Jennifer - Deborah,
Please post the meeting notice and agenda in the lobby for the public.

Mikell - Brandie,
Please post the meeting notice and agenda on the website for the public.
 
Thank you,  
 
Pamela Wygant
East Lansing-Meridian Water & Sewer Authority
Administrative Assistant
2470 Burcham 
East Lansing, MI 48823
T. (517) 337-7535
F. (517) 337-7240



   

  
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

       
       

 

 

 

        

 

      

   

 

  

         
    

 

   

   

        

       
   

     

   
      

    

  



EAST LANSING – MERIDIAN WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY 
2470 BURCHAM DRIVE – EAST LANSING, MICHIGAN  48823 

PHONE: 517-337-7535   FAX 517-337-7240 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC AND TELEPHONIC MEETING 

Please take notice that the Board of Trustees of the East Lansing – Meridian Water and Sewer Authority 
(“Authority Board”) will hold a public meeting at 11:00 AM, on Thursday, March 18, 2021 by convening 
the Authority Board through remote electronic access as provided in this Notice. Proceedings conducted 
at this meeting are pursuant to the provisions of the amended Michigan Open Meetings Act, (Public Act 
254 of 2020). 

1. The Authority Board is meeting electronically to address necessary business operations and allow 
ongoing work to sustain and protect the lives of the residents of its constituent municipalities. 

2. This meeting is being held electronically to comply with federal and state agency recommendations 
to cease in-person public assemblies, self-quarantine, and help prohibit the spread of COVID-19. The 
Authority Board recognizes its continuing responsibility for needed decision-making and will conduct 
this meeting in a manner that effectuates as fully as possible the purposes of the Open Meetings Act. 

3. Individuals are encouraged to participate in the meeting electronically, including providing public 
comment, either through prior e-mail correspondence, online audio-conferencing, and telephone 
comments. 

4. For those seeking to participate electronically through online video or audio-conferencing, 
participants can access the electronic meeting through the following link: 
https://zoom.us/s/572589791, Password 2470, or by calling 1 (646) 558-8656, Meeting ID 572 589 
791, Password 2470. Participants may use any device that supports the video-conferencing app or 
when prompted after clicking the link, choose to join the meeting through a default browser, if 
applicable. For those who choose to access through the video-conference app, you will be prompted 
to download the app to participate.  

5. To participate in public comment during the virtual meeting, upon entering the meeting indicate you 
wish to take part in public comment in the chat, or verbally if on the phone or audio-conferencing. 
You’ll be called upon by the Chairperson during the Public Comment section or other appropriate 
sections of the meeting. When directed by the Chairperson, please call (517) 349-1232 to make your 
comments. Members of the public are allowed three minutes to speak. You can then return to the 
meeting as before  

6. Questions and comments may be submitted prior to the meeting by email to cdugan@elmwsa.com. 
Emails to that address relevant to this meeting will be distributed to the Authority Board. 

7. Further information and materials related to this meeting can be requested by contacting 
cdugan@elmwsa.com or (517) 337-7535 Ext. 1. 

8. Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in the meeting should 
contact the Authority Manager at (517) 337-7535 Ext. 1 or through the Michigan Relay Center at 7-1-
1 (TDD) at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance of the meeting to request visual, hearing, 
technological, or other assistance.  

9. If you are unable to access the meeting due to technical difficulties, please contact Director of IT, 
Stephen Gebes; (517) 853-4222; gebes@meridian.mi.us. Every effort will be made to help you 
participate in the meeting. 

 





























Try email marketing for free today!







CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
TOWNSHIP BOARD VIRTUAL SPECIAL MEETING   -DRAFT- 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos MI 48864-1198 
517.349.1232, Virtual Meeting via Zoom  
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 23, 2021  6:00 pm. 
 
PRESENT: Supervisor Styka, Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Jackson, Opsommer, 

Sundland, Wisinski 
 
ABSENT: None 
 
STAFF: Township Manager Walsh, Director of Public Works Perry, Fire Chief Hamel, 

Community Planning and Development Director Kieselbach, Information 
Technology Director Gebes, Parks and Recreation Director Maisner, Finance 
Director Mattison, Human Resources Director Tithof, Economic Development and 
Neighborhoods Director Clark, Communications Manager Yates 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Supervisor Styka called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 

Supervisor Styka led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. ROLL CALL 

Clerk Guthrie called the roll of the Board.   
  
4. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Findings of the Local Officials Compensation Commission 
 
Human Resources Director Tithof presented an overview of the determination of salaries for 
Elected Officials 2021 and 2022 by the Local Officials Compensation Commissions. 
 
5.   CITIZENS ADDDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Supervisor Styka opened public remarks at 6:04 pm 
 
None  
 

Supervisor Styka closed public remarks at 6:05 pm.  
 
6. TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT 

Manager Walsh reported 
• Deer Management Program – Cull Deer Phase:  to date 275 deer have been culled and the 

maximum through the approved DNR program is 326.  He thanked the Police, Parks and 
Recreation and Public Works Teams for their efforts to make this program a success. 

• Woda Cooper Development – The site plan has been submitted to the Planning Department and 
the Board will receive an update at a future meeting. 

• Jolly Road Proposed Rezoning – It will be heard by the Planning Commission on March 8 and 
the Board will receive an update at a future meeting.   



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, FEBRUARY 23, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 2   
 

• MSU Credit Union – the Township received notice they will be amending their facility plan as it 
pertains to the drive through lanes on Central Park Drive 

• 2021 Township Action Plan Work Groups – On March 2, the Board will receive the first updates 
from the groups 

• Proposed Synthetic Ice Rink for Marketplace on the Green – the bid opening is scheduled for 
May 1 for a 100’x40’ proposed area 

• Free Sled Program – This idea is from Sault Saint Marie.  To offer free sleds for visitors to use 
during a visit at North Meridian Road Park.  Since we are nearing spring, this program may not 
happen this year but will next year 

• Former Walnut Hills Country Club Site – demolition is almost complete with the recent removal 
of the pool and club house 

• Food Pantry – met with Cecelia Kramer on moving forward with a proposed site and working 
with Clerk Guthrie and others on other proposed locations.  A second pantry will be installed at 
the Faith Lutheran Church on Dobie Road.  Sites are being approved through the Planning 
Department by Director Kieselbach 
 

7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

Treasurer Deschaine: 
• Commended the installation of the food pantries and announced the Okemos Community 

Church charity bingo asking for donations for those in need. 
• As of February 17, the winter tax collection is at 99% of where it was last year.  The summer tax 

collection was at 99.9%.  On March 1, the Township will turn over unpaid taxes to the Ingham 
County Treasurer.  The County Treasurer writes a check to the Township for the delinquent tax 
amount and then will spend the next three years trying to collect the taxes that will include 
interest and penalties. 
 
Clerk Guthrie: 

• Election Commission meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, February 24, at 6 pm to review the 
possibility of relocating precinct locations, accessibility issues, and review the post-election 
findings from the Ingham County Clerk.  She thanked Deputy Manager Perry and staff for 
meeting with Okemos Public School officials to look at alternative polling locations.   

• She thanked the City of East Lansing Clerk’s Office for assisting with election and training 
materials.  She will be working with former City Clerk Marie Wicks to assist with training for the 
upcoming election. 
  
Trustee Wisinski: 

• Will be attending the Election Commission meeting on Wednesday.   
• Will be attending a Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Task Force meeting on Thursday, February 

25. 
• Will be attending the Environmental Commission meeting on March 3.  The Environment 

Commission has received four letters for green grants from Okemos and Haslett Schools.  
Grainger has offered $1,000 and some of the other businesses have volunteered to match funds.  
She will be on the committee to review the grants.  The Commission received a presentation on 
using social media for environmental change as a way to inform citizens on environmental 
concerns and what is happening in Meridian Township. 

• Attended Groundwater Management Board meeting.  The Board is looking for support for a 
geographical survey that will assist in locating the wells in Michigan.  The Board will be writing 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, FEBRUARY 23, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 3   
 

a grant or look for funding to update the survey and will be asking for letters of support for the 
project. 
 
Trustee Opsommer 

• The Land Preservation Advisory Board is discussing the renaming of some of the land 
preserves.  In the February 10 Advisory Board meeting packet, Chair Hiller included a list of 
perspective names.  If a citizen or board member would like to comment, a message can be sent 
to the staff.  Some of the preserves do have naming rights that were part of the purchase 
agreement. 

• The Planning Commission on Monday, February 22 held a n public hearing on the Auto 
Dealership Amendment  
 

8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Trustee Wisinski moved to approve the agenda as presented. Seconded by Treasurer 
Deschaine 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Clerk Guthrie, Trustees Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Wisinski, 
  Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka 
 

NAYS: None 
 

Motion carried 7-0. 
 
9. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Supervisor Styka reviewed the consent agenda. 
 
Treasurer Deschaine moved to adopt the Consent Agenda as presented. Seconded by Trustee 
Jackson 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Wisinski, Clerk Guthrie, 

Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka 
 

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 7-0  
   

A. Communications 
 
Treasurer Deschaine the communications not already assigned for disposition be referred to 
the Township Manager or Supervisor for follow-up. Seconded by Trustee Jackson 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Wisinski, Clerk Guthrie, 

Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka 
 

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 
   



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, FEBRUARY 23, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 4   
 

B. Approval of Minutes – February 2, 2021 Virtual Regular Meeting  
 
Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve and ratify the minutes of the February 2, 2021 
Virtual Regular Meeting, as submitted. Seconded by Trustee Jackson 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Wisinski, Clerk Guthrie, 

Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka 
 

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 7-0  

C. Bills 
 
Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve that the Township Board approve the Manager’s 
Bills as follows:  Seconded by Trustee Jackson 
 
  Common Cash       $ 2,075,039.78 
  Public Works       $     559,364.21 
  Trust & Agency      $                      3,704.72 
      Total Checks   $             2,638,108.71 
 
  Credit Card Transactions     $       15,289.92 
  1/29/2021-2/7/2021     
      Total Purchases  $            2,653,398.63 
 
  ACH Payments      $  1,145,760.44 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Wisinski, Clerk Guthrie, 

Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka 
 

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 
  

D. Lake Lansing Road at Dawn Avenue Sanitary Sewer Benefit Charge 
 
Treasurer Deschaine move to approve the resolution establishing sanitary system benefit 
charges for Lake Lansing Road at Dawn Avenue, and establishing a cost of $16,280.89 for 
2783 Lake Lansing Road, parcel 33-02-02-08-201-001 (plus 5% annual increase).  Seconded 
by Trustee Jackson 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Wisinski, Clerk Guthrie, 

Treasurer Deschaine, Supervisor Styka 
 

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 

 
10. QUESTIONS FOR THE ATTORNEY – NONE  
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, FEBRUARY 23, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 5   
 

11. HEARINGS 
A. Powell Road Paving Public Road Improvement SAD 
 

Deputy Manager Perry stated the Township Board had previously held a public hearing on the 
Powell Road Paving SAD.  It will be 1,600 feet of new pavement from Grand River to the Silverstone 
Development.  The estimated project cost is $460,000.  The developer will cover 56% of the project 
costs but a portion of the costs will be returned to the developer through the special assessment 
district.  As part of the special assessment process, two public hearings are required.  Tonight’s 
public hearing provides an opportunity for Township Board to receive comments on the special 
assessment district. 
 
Supervisor Styka called the public hearing to order at 6:25 pm. 
 
Gary Laundroche, Lafontaine Buick Group, 4000 W Highland Road, Highland, MI, spoke in 
opposition to the SAD and raised concern that the paving costs being assessed on their site was 
because they have not completed their project.  It appears the Silverstone developer is diverting 
their paving costs onto their project site. 
 
Supervisor Styka closed the public hearing at 6:29pm. 
 
12. ACTION ITEMS 
 

A. Ratification of Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Appointment  
 

Treasurer Deschaine move to approve the appointment of Brenda Chapman to the 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority for a term ending 12/31/2023.  Seconded by Trustee 
Jackson. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Opsommer, Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine,  
  Supervisor Styka, Trustees Sundland, Wisinski 
 

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried:  7-0 

 
Supervisor Styka thanked Jade Sims for serving on the Economic Development Corporation and the 
Brownfield Development Authority and wished her well on her future endeavors.  He welcomed 
Brenda Chapman to the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority. 

 
B. Fire Services Agreement – Alaiedon Township 

 
Fire Chief Hamel summarized the proposed fire services agreement with Alaiedon Township. 
 
Discussion: 
• When asked about why the fees have not been increased, Chief Hamel stated the proposed fees 

cover the Township’s costs. 
• When asked if cost comparisons have been conducted, Chief Hamel replied no.  The intent of 

this agreement is to assist Delhi with coverage of this section of Alaiedon Township and 
traditionally, there it is mutual aid involved with neighboring areas. 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, FEBRUARY 23, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 6   
 

Trustee Opsommer move to approve the agreement between Delhi Charter Township and 
Meridian Charter Township for fire and rescue services within Alaiedon Township and 
authorize the Township Manager and Fire Chief to sign the agreement.  Seconded by Trustee 
Jackson 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Sundland, Wisinski, Opsommer, Jackson, Clerk Guthrie, 

Supervisor Styka, Treasurer Deschaine 
 

NAYS: None 
     
Motion carried:  7-0 

 
13. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Powell Road Paving Public Road Improvement SAD 

Discussion: 
• Clerk Guthrie summarized a communication received Sunday from New China of MI Inc. in 

opposition to the special assessment and reported it will be included in the next meeting 
packet.  Deputy Manager Perry addressed the concerns outlined in the communication. 

• The Lafontaine site plan included an egress onto Powell Road from their two parcels, one on the 
east side and one on the west side of Powell Road 

• The paving of Powell Road was a condition of the preliminary plat for Silverstone. 

Board consensus to place this item on the next Board meeting agenda. 

B. 2021 Citizen Survey 
 
Director Clark summarized information from two communities who do not use the National 
Research Center.   
 
Discussion: 
• Manager Walsh explained how the City of St. Joseph conducted their in-house survey, the 

response percentages and due to feedback, they moved to mailing it out to registered voters. 
• Manager Walsh reported Deputy Manager Perry, Director Clark and himself would lead the 

project.  He suggested the Board could set aside time to outline the topics to be covered and 
staff can investigate whom to hire to create the questions on the subject matter.  The questions 
could be reviewed by the Township Board and mailed out.  

• Director Clark offered a timeline of:  begin question preparation, have finalized for mailing in 
June, results compiled in July, and findings presented to Board in August. 

• Manager Walsh stated he will work with staff to develop questions and two main topics to 
include are adult use recreational marihuana and deer management program.  When asked if 
the results could be made available before August, Manager Walsh stated there are two options 
for conducting the survey.  One is to perform a survey based only on recreational marihuana 
and waiting until next year to send out an extensive survey or proceed with a survey that covers 
multiple topics.   

• It was the consensus of the Board to proceed with an in-house survey and staff was directed to 
develop a timeline for a single or two-issue survey and for a multi-questioned survey. 

Board consensus to place this item on the next Board meeting agenda. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, FEBRUARY 23, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 7   
 

14. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 

Supervisor Styka Opened Public Remarks at 7:36 pm. 
 
Haibiao Zhang, 4719 Powell Road, Okemos, voiced concern about the large developments, how the 
environment has changed because of the removal of the trees on the site adjacent to his property 
including trees on his property, and how it has damaged the wetland.  He is requesting the trees be 
replanted including on his property, not just grass and asked how to make sure the developer 
protects the environment, their property and community.  He spoke about the problems this has 
caused to his area and is against the special assessment. 
 

Supervisor Styka Closed Public Remarks at 7:39 pm. 
 
15. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Supervisor Styka reported the Planning Commission is asking for a joint meeting with the 
Township Board and he asked about setting aside an hour at the next meeting.   
 
Trustee Jackson asked if there is a specific topic.   
 
Supervisor Styka stated they mentioned recreational marihuana.   
 
Trustee Opsommer stated the Commission also mentioned form based code. 
 
Supervisor Styka stated he would contact the Planning Commission Chair and schedule a time 
during an upcoming Township Board Meeting. 
 
Clerk Guthrie announced this Thursday, February 25, from 6-8 pm, HOMTV will be hosting their 
annual Intern Appreciation and Golden Tape Awards Ceremony.  Normally it is held at Studio C as a 
red carpet event but will be held virtually this year. 
 
Trustee Opsommer asked when the Special Use Permit for Lafontaine expires.  Director Kieselbach 
replied he believed it is July this year.  It was approved in 2019 for two years but he will verify the 
date.  Trustee Opsommer stated with the SUP due to expire, the Auto Dealership Amendment would 
require it to be heard by the Township Board and then referred to the Planning Commission.  With 
the right-of-way issues Deputy Perry is having with DTN, he suggested the Township could allocate 
some of the tree planting project funds for tree to be planted in the public right-of-way on the 
Lafontaine site to start reforesting the area.   
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Treasurer Deschaine moved to adjourn. Seconded by Trustee Wisinski 
 
VOICE/HAND VOTE:   Motion carried 7-0. 
 
Supervisor Styka adjourned the meeting at 7:46 pm. 
 
 

 
 

_____________________________ 
                    RONALD J. STYKA, 

TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR 

 
______________________________ 

DEBORAH GUTHRIE, 
TOWNSHIP CLERK 

 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
TOWNSHIP BOARD VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING   -DRAFT- 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos MI 48864-1198 
517.349.1232, Virtual Meeting via Zoom  
TUESDAY, MARCH 2, 2021  6:00 pm. 
 
PRESENT: Supervisor Clerk Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Jackson, Opsommer, 

Sundland, Wisinski 
 
ABSENT: Supervisor Styka 
 
STAFF: Township Manager Walsh, Director of Public Works Perry, Fire Chief Hamel, 

Community Planning and Development Director Kieselbach, Information 
Technology Director Gebes, Parks and Recreation Director Maisner, Finance 
Director Mattison, Human Resources Director Tithof, Economic Development and 
Neighborhoods Director Clark, Communications Manager Yates, Principal Planner 
Menser 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
Supervisor Styka called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS 

Supervisor Styka led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. ROLL CALL 

Clerk Guthrie called the roll of the Board. 
  
4. PRESENTATIONS 

A. 2021 Township Action Plan Work Groups Updates 
 
Manager Walsh outlined the ten (10) work groups and staff offered updates on:  1) COVID-19; 2) 
Sustainability; 3) Diversity, Equity and Inclusion; 4) Downtown Okemos/Downtown Haslett 
Development Areas; 5) Roads; 6) Broadband/High Speed Internet; 7) MSU/Lake Lansing Pathway; 
8) Signage; 9) Website; 10) Retirement/MERS 
 
5.   CITIZENS ADDDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Supervisor Styka opened public remarks at 6:20 pm 
 
TJ Waller, 5508 Okemos Road, Okemos spoke in support for recreational marihuana in the 
Township and requested to have a safe place in his community to make his purchase. 
 
Caroline Reynnet, 256 W Grand River, Okemos, asked the Board to offer their views on recreational 
marihuana facilities and how will these shops enhance living in the Township.  She supports 
medical marihuana but does not recreational marihuana in the Township. 
 
Owen Frank, 334 E. Washington Street, Ann Arbor, MI, spoke in support for allowing recreational 
marihuana in the Township. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, MARCH 2, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 2   
 

Joyce VanCoevering, 5882 Okemos Road, Okemos, spoke in support of conducting a survey to 
receive citizen input on recreational marihuana before allowing recreational marihuana in the 
Township. 
 
Mei You, 2690 Morning Glory Drive, Okemos, spoke in opposition to allowing recreational 
marihuana but does support medical marihuana in the Township. 
 
Vance Poquette, 2226 Kent Street, Okemos, stated there is no an immediate need for recreational 
marihuana at this time. 
 
Mary Waller, 5508 Okemos Road, Okemos questioned spending $10,000 on a survey when 
recreational marihuana has already been voted on.  She asked the Board to do its job and trusts the 
Board to create an ordinance to address this issue. 
 
Manuela Kress, 1376 Biscayne Way, Haslett, stated she has already moved in the Township because 
her neighbor was smoking marihuana and is concerned with this smell in her new neighborhood. 
 
Kevin Liu, 2690 Morning Glory Drive, Okemos, stated he sent a communication and spoke in 
opposition to recreational marihuana. 
 
Wei Li, 2565 Sophiea Parkway, Okemos, spoke in opposition to allowing recreational marihuana. 
 
Lynne Page, 3912 Raleigh Drive, Okemos, spoke in support for prohibiting commercial recreational 
marihuana businesses in the Township.   
 
Marcus Baldori, 2267 Mt. Hope Road, Okemos, spoke in support of recreational marihuana facilities. 
 
Leszek Gawarecki, 4568 Tacoma Boulevard, Okemos, stated the ballot language was to allow 
recreational marihuana but not to build facilities.  Although he is against building facilities, he 
recommended obtaining citizen input and a financial analysis before making any decisions. 
 

Supervisor Styka closed public remarks at 6:51 pm.  
 
6. TOWNSHIP MANAGER REPORT 

Manager Walsh reported 
• Prime Meridian Magazine will be mailed out next week 
• Deer Management Program – 304 deer have been harvested to date.  The Cull Deer Phase has 

25 tags remaining  
• Jolly Road Proposed Rezoning – It will be heard by the Planning Commission on March 8 and 

the Board will receive an update at a future meeting   
• Food Pantry – met with the Okemos Library and have confirmed a panty location on their site 
• LEAP Public Art Grant – should hear the announcement soon on the public art grant submitted 

for the Marketplace on the Green 
• Redevelopment Opportunity on Powell Road – meeting with developers interested in 

developing a senior housing complex on the Lafontaine parcel 
• Prevailing Wages – the policy is being challenged and will be heard by the Board on March 16 
• SmartZones – Director Clark is working with East Lansing and Lansing on project in the Local 

Development Finance Authority (LDFA) Smart Zones and the Board will receive an update at a 
future agenda 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, MARCH 2, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 3   
 

• Congratulated Chief Engineer Younes Ishraidi on celebrating 32 years with the Township and 
stated he is one of three who assisted with the design of the Okemos Road boardwalk.   
 

7. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

Treasurer Deschaine: 
• Attended the February 17 CATA Board Meeting, the February 20 Township Board Retreat and 

the February 22 DDA Meeting 
• Today, March 2, is the last day to pay winter taxes.  After today, a resident will need to pay their 

taxes with the Ingham County Treasurer.  99% of last year’s receipts have been paid  
 
Trustee Jackson: 

• Attended the February 23 Tri-County Regional Planning Commission Board Meeting where 
there was an amendment to the Transportation and Improvement Program (TIP) which 
included changes to lights and traffic movement on Grand River Avenue, Dobie Road and 
Central Park Drive 

 
Supervisor Styka 

• Attended the February 22 DDA meeting and all board members attended the Township Board 
Retreat on February 20 
 
Trustee Opsommer: 

• The Land Preservation Advisory Board (LPAB) is in the process of renaming of some of the land 
preserves.  If a citizen or board member would like to comment, a message can be sent to the 
staff.  Information is located online in the LPAB February Board Meeting packet. 

• Reported the construction on the light changes for green arrows from Central Park Drive and 
Dobie Road onto Grand River Avenue will begin in September 
 

8. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Treasurer Deschaine moved to approve the agenda as presented. Seconded by Trustee 
Jackson. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Opsommer, Sundland, Wisinski, Supervisor Styka, Clerk 

 Guthrie, Treasurer Deschaine, Trustee Jackson   
 

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 

 
9. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Supervisor Styka reviewed the consent agenda. 
 
Trustee Wisinski moved to adopt the Consent Agenda as presented. Seconded by Treasurer 
Deschaine 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Sundland, Wisinski, Supervisor Styka, Clerk Guthrie, 

Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Jackson, Opsommer  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, MARCH 2, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 4   
 

 
NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 7-0  
   

A. Communications 
 
Trustee Wisinski the communications not already assigned for disposition be referred to the 
Township Manager or Supervisor for follow-up. Seconded by Treasurer Deschaine 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Sundland, Wisinski, Supervisor Styka, Clerk Guthrie, 

Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Jackson, Opsommer  
 

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 
   

B. Approval of Minutes – January 19, 2021 Virtual Regular Meeting and January 26, 2021 Virtual 
Joint Meeting of Boards and Commissions 

 
Trustee Wisinski moved to approve and ratify the minutes of the February 2, 2021 Virtual 
Regular Meeting, as submitted. Seconded by Treasurer Deschaine 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Sundland, Wisinski, Supervisor Styka, Clerk Guthrie, 

Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Jackson, Opsommer  
 

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 7-0  

C. Bills 
 
Trustee Wisinski moved to approve that the Township Board approve the Manager’s Bills as 
follows:  Seconded by Treasurer Deschaine 
 
  Common Cash       $     185,767.84 
  Public Works       $          4,133.20 
  Trust & Agency      $                      4,806.09 
      Total Checks   $                 194,707.13 
 
  Credit Card Transactions     $           6,516.02 
  02/18/2021-02/24/2021     
      Total Purchases  $                 201,223.15 
 
  ACH Payments      $           6,404.79 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Sundland, Wisinski, Supervisor Styka, Clerk Guthrie, 

Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Jackson, Opsommer  
 

NAYS: None 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, MARCH 2, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 5   
 

Motion carried: 7-0 
 

D. Disposal of Surplus Vehicles & Equipment 
 
Trustee Wisinski moved to authorize the disposal of vehicle #2 (2013 Ford Taurus, vehicle 
#46 (2013 Ford Taurus),  vehicle #101 (2012 Ford Focus), vehicle #102 (2012 Ford Focus), 
vehicle #611 (2013 Ford Taurus), vehicle #9 (2008 Sterling dump truck), vehicle #10 (2001 
Freightliner Vactor), equipment #59 (1991 Trackless including attachments), equipment 
#78 (2007 Toro Mower), equipment #86 (2001 Toro 455D mower), equipment #88 ( 1992 
John Deere 1070 Tractor), flood lights with stand, water line thaw machine, Ammoco 
Drum/Rotor Lathe, Snap�On tire balancer, and drinking fountains by public auction, 
internet auction, direct sale to another municipality or by sealed bid.   Seconded by 
Treasurer Deschaine 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Sundland, Wisinski, Supervisor Styka, Clerk Guthrie, 

Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Jackson, Opsommer  
 

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 
 

E. Request for Section 61 Review for Proposed Land Acquisition for Parks 
 
Trustee Wisinski move to forward the proposed acquisition of property for park purposes to 
the Planning Commission for approval of revisions to the Township’s Comprehensive 
Development Plan as required by MCL 125.39 (Section 61 Review). The Section 61 Review is 
for the acquisition of 1.85-acre parcel (Parcel #33-02-02-16-200-011) located at 5280 
Okemos Road, Haslett.  This site, when acquired, will host an improved entrance to Nancy 
Moore Park and serve as a trailhead area for users of the Pedestrian/Bicycle Pathway 
System.  Seconded by Treasurer Deschaine 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Sundland, Wisinski, Supervisor Styka, Clerk Guthrie, 

Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Jackson, Opsommer  
 

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 
 

F. Election Polling Location Changes 
 
Trustee Wisinski move to approve the resolution for the temporary relocation of Precinct 10 
from the Meridian Township Service Center to Precinct 12; Wardcliff School and to approve 
the temporary relocation of Precinct 15 from the Meridian Township Senior Center to 
Precinct 7; Kinawa School for the May 4, 2021 Special Election. Seconded by Treasurer 
Deschaine 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Sundland, Wisinski, Supervisor Styka, Clerk Guthrie, 

Treasurer Deschaine, Trustees Jackson, Opsommer  
 

NAYS: None 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, MARCH 2, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 6   
 

 
Motion carried: 7-0 
 

10. QUESTIONS FOR THE ATTORNEY – NONE  
 
11. HEARINGS - NONE  

 
12. ACTION ITEMS 
 

A. Powell Road PRI SAD #43 – Resolution #3 
 

Deputy Manager Perry stated this is Resolution #3 of the Special Assessment District to pave Powell 
Road 1,600 feet north of Grand River Avenue to the Silverstone Estates Development. The projected 
cost is $460,000.  The developer’s cost is at 56% for a projected cost of $256,000 and the remaining 
percentage assessed is to the other properties in the district.  A public hearing was held on 
February 23 and this resolution is an authorization to proceed with the special assessment district. 
 
Treasurer Deschaine move to approve Powell Road Public Road Improvements Special 
Assessment District #43 Resolution #3; to approve the improvements to grade, gravel and 
pave Powell Road, and be completed by the owner of Silverstone Subdivision; and to defray 
the cost thereof by special assessment against the properties specially benefitted thereby in 
the manner previously listed; approve the total estimated cost of $460,003.62; and approve 
the special assessment district.  Seconded by Trustee Jackson 
 
Discussion: 
• Information on the possibility of preserving the trees will be available after the meeting with 

the developer on March 3 but it is challenging with the grade of Powell Road 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustees Jackson, Opsommer, Sundland, Wisinski, Clerk Guthrie,  
  Supervisor Styka, Treasurer Deschaine   
 

NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 

 
B. Resolution Celebrating Women’s History Month 

 
Treasurer Deschaine move to approve resolution Celebrating Women’s History Month.  
Seconded by Trustee Jackson 
 
Discussion: 
• Trustee Jackson moved the following amendment to include department heads and staff as 

follows:  “WHEREAS, women have played and continue to play a major role in the governing of 
the Charter Township of Meridian, serving on numerous Boards and Commissions and as the 
Supervisor, Treasurer, Clerk, Trustees, Department Heads and staff members throughout the 
Township’s history”  Seconded by Trustee Wisinski  
 
VOICE/HAND VOTE:   Amendment carried 7-0 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Treasurer Deschaine, Clerk Guthrie, Supervisor Styka, Trustees 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, MARCH 2, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 7   
 

  Jackson, Sundland, Wisinski, Opsommer 
NAYS: None 
     
Motion carried:  7-0 

 
13. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. 6503 Park Lake Road Open Space Easement 
 
Director Kieselbach stated the Open Space Easement request is from David and Joan Johnson, 
Halmich Sod Nurseries, Inc., 6503 Park Lake Road.  This request is part of the State’s Natural 
Resources and Environmental Protection Act, Farmland and Open Space Preservation Program.  
The easement is an agreement between the landowner and the Township giving the owner certain 
benefits, tax credits and exemptions for various special assessments to preserve the land as open 
space.  The parcel is 57 acres and was previously a sod farm with a two house and three accessory 
buildings.  A portion of the site is shared with Bath Township and it is currently used for 
agricultural crops.  Director Kieselbach outlined the process and reported he received an email 
from the Conservation District’s Board of Directors stating the Board did not have any concerns or 
comments on the property going into the open space easement.  Township Assessor Dave Lee will 
be performing an assessment but has indicated the property has zero value for development rights.   
The Township has 45 days to make a decision on the request and it could be listed as an action item 
at the March 16 meeting.   
 
Discussion: 
• During the 90 years of the agreement, the parcel can continue to be used for agricultural 

purposes. 
• Director Kieselbach stated during discussions with Mr. Johnson indicated he was not interested 

in allowing public access. 
• Director Kieselbach was asked to research with the State on the termination process of an 

agreement and will work with Assessor Lee on the tax credit information. 

Board consensus to place this item on the next Board meeting agenda. 

B. 2021 Citizen Survey 
 
Director Clark stated the Township performs a citizen survey every three (3) years and the last 
survey was conducted in 2018.  Typically, the survey is conducted by a national survey service but 
the Board is entertaining an idea of performing the survey in-house to focus on the Township 
issues.   
 
The Board had asked for information on organizations that could assist with the project.  
Information was provided from Colbolt Community Research and MSU’s Institute for Public Policy 
and Social Research.  Both institutes have experience working with municipalities and the topic of 
marihuana.   
 
Colbolt’s analysis will include the community’s progress, year-to-year and a comparison of the 
community across the state and at the national level.  Colbolt recently perform a community survey 
on marihuana in Royal Oak.  Colbolt has the ability to work with specific questions and can analyze 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, MARCH 2, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 8   
 

by a wide variety of demographics.  Colbolt can perform a one topic survey for $10,000 or 
community multi-topic survey for $16,000 with postage with a random sampling at 1,500 residents.  
For every 1,000 resident names added to the sampling, the cost increased by $1,000.  
 
MSU indicated they could perform a one topic or multiple topic survey at the same cost of $12,768 
plus postage.  MSU has an indirect cost policy and the Township would have to adopt it and pay the 
surcharge.  
 
Eighty percent (80%) of the Township’s population is registered voters.  Both entities indicated 
they feel safe using the registered voter sampling and have provisions for on-line sampling.  Both 
entities indicated they will be able to keep the random sampling and on-line sampling information 
separate and will be able to give an overall view of the community from the data results. 
 
Discussion: 
• Director Clark was asked to obtain survey samples, increase the resident sampling number and 

obtain quotes from additional entities for a multi-topic survey 

Board consensus to place this item on the next Board meeting agenda. 

C. Recreational Marihuana 
 
Attorney Kuschel reviewed his legal memorandum. 
 
Discussion: 
• Board members discussed including the marihuana question(s) in the multi-topic survey 
 
Treasurer Deschaine move to defer discussion of the recreational marihuana ordinance until after 
receiving the Citizen Survey results.  Seconded by Clerk Guthrie 
 
Discussion: 
• Treasurer Deschaine suggested completing the data research before proceeding with 

developing an ordinance 

Supervisor Styka stated a parliamentary action is required first.  This topic is not an action item and 
would require a motion to suspend the rules and consider the topic an action item or there can be a 
motion to table discussion on the topic. 

Treasurer Deschaine withdrew his motion and asked to have this topic as an action item on the next 
Board meeting agenda.  He also asked to include Expansion of Redi-Ride Boundaries to include 
access to medical and/or recreational marihuana facilities as an action item on the next agenda. 
 
Supervisor Styka stated for the next agenda, under discussion, will be the Citizen Survey and 
Recreational Marihuana and the Expansion of Redi-Ride locations. 

Board consensus to place this item on the next Board meeting agenda. 

14. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 

Supervisor Styka Opened Public Remarks at 9:13 pm. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, MARCH 2, 2021 VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING *DRAFT* 

 Page 9   
 

 
Jeffery Hank, East Lansing, stated he assisted with the drafting of recreational marihuana (MRTMA) 
and developing the recreational marihuana law.  He also ran the campaign to legalize recreational 
marihuana.  He supports opting in; the need for a social equity program and recreational marihuana 
should be a licensing program and not a land use issue. 
 

Supervisor Styka Closed Public Remarks at 9:18 pm. 
 
15. OTHER MATTERS AND BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Trustee Wisinski moved to adjourn. Seconded by Treasurer Deschaine  
 
VOICE/HAND VOTE:   Motion carried 7-0. 
 
Supervisor Styka adjourned the meeting at 9:18 pm. 
 
 

 
 

_____________________________ 
                    RONALD J. STYKA, 

TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR 

 
______________________________ 

DEBORAH GUTHRIE, 
TOWNSHIP CLERK 

 
 





   
  

          
      

         
   

  
 

      
        

    
  

     
     

   

    

       
        

 

      
    

    

     

      

    

   

      

    

   

    

     

   

  

  

     

      

         

     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

    

     

    

 

      

      

      
      
      
      

 

   

    

        

           
          
          
          
           
           

 

 

 

  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 



   
  

          
      

         

  

   

   

   

   

     

    

     

  

     

   

 

    
      
    

 

       

     

   

    

    

    

  
  

 

     
      

      
   

     
      

    

        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        

 

        
    

     
   

    

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 



   
  

          
      

         

  

  

     

    

    

    

  

     

    

   

 

       
      
       
       
       
       
       

 

   

      

   

        

       

      

       
     

      
    

    

   
    

 

    
     

      
     

  
   

  
   

  
   
   

  
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

 

     
       

     
       

   

   

      
    

 

       
    

      
    

       

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 
  

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



   
  

          
      

         
   

  
 

    
       

     
     

  
     

     
        

    
    

   
      

  
      
      

 

     
        

   
         

    

   

    

   

    

    

    

   

   

     

     

       
      

 

       

       

       

     
     
     
     
     
      

 

    

    

        

   

       
    
    

 

    
     

     
      

      
   

       
  

   
   

      
     

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  
 
 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 



   
  

          
      

         

  

   

     

   

   

   

 

  

      

  

      
    

    
     

      
    

        
        

 

    
     

      

 

   
       

   
     

     

 

   
    

   
      

     

    

   

     
       

 

    
    
    

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 



   
  

          
      

         

  

   

    

     

   

    

   

   

 

      

      

     

       

   

    
         

 

     
      

    
      

        

 

    
     

    
      

   
      

  
       

    
      

    
      

     
       

    
       

   
     

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   
  

          
      

         

  

   

    

   

   

    

   

   

 

         

        

     
     

 

         

         

        
    

    

    
    

    
    

 

 

   
        

   
        

   

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 



    

      
       

        

       

       

         

        

       

     

       

      

       

        

        

       

       

      

       

       

       

      

       

       

     

        

        

        

        

        

       

       

        

        

        

        

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

        

     

        

       

        
       
        

       
        

       

        



       
       
         
        
        
       
      
       
     
        
       
     
       
       
      
        
        
        
        
       
        
      
       
       
       
       
       
        
        
     
      
         
      
       
     
        
      
        
       
        
        
       
     

       
         
     
      
        

        

        

      

      

         

       
     









           
   

          

          
 

    

     

    
           



  
  

   
  

   
   

   

    
 

   

  

  

 

    

 

  

  

   
  

  

 

    

    

     

      

   

    

    

    

    

  

 

           







Township Board Resolution 
Towner Road Park –LWCF 2021 Grant Play Space 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Towner Road Park Play Space 

RESOLUTION 
 
 At an electronic meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of 
Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, held on the 16th day of March, 2021 at 6:00 
p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT:  
  
ABSENT:  
 
 

The following resolution was offered by Board Member ______ and supported 
by Board Member _________: 
  

WHEREAS, the Michigan Department of Natural Resources accepts grant 
requests from local units of government to assist in the development and 
acquisition of recreation properties; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is possible to have up to 50% of the total project cost funded by 
the Land and Water Conservation Fund program; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Park Commission and Township Board are interested 
leveraging local Park Millage Funds by obtaining supplemental grant funding for 
park projects whenever possible; and 

 
WHEREAS, Meridian Township has prepared a grant application for 

submission to the Land and Water Conservation Fund for $350,000 of 
improvements to Towner Road Park consisting of a Play Space to improve and 
expand recreation opportunities and accessibility for visitors of all abilities; and 
 

WHEREAS, this project is identified and supported in the 2017-2021 Parks 
and Recreation Master Plan adopted by the Meridian Township Board and Park 
Commission, and is on file with the Michigan Department of Natural Resources; and 
 

WHEREAS, the grant request is outlined and justified in the 2021-2027 
Capital Improvements Program adopted by the Township Board and Park 
Commission; and 

 
 
WHEREAS, this grant request was open to public review on March 9, 2021 

and approved for submission by the Park Commission. 
 



Township Board Resolution 
Towner Road Park –LWCF 2021 Grant Play Space 

Page 2 of 2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PARK COMMISSION OF THE 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN, as follows: 
 

To support submission of a grant application to the Land and Water 
Conservation Fund for development of a Play Space in Towner Road 
Park with a total project cost of $350,000.  The fifty (50%) percent 
local match of $175,000 will be funded by the Park Millage, with the 
remaining fifty (50%) percent ($175,000) funded by the Land and 
Water Conservation Fund grant. 
 
 

ADOPTED:  
YEAS:   
  
NAYS:   None 
 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 
  
 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Township Board, 
Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that 
the foregoing is a true and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular 
meeting of the Township Board on the 16th of March, 2021. 
 
      ______________________________________________  

Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 
 





 
  

   
 

 

 

 

 

  

       

   

       

 

              
                 
                  

               
              

               
               

              
              

             
              

                  
                

              
            

              
                 

  

   

                 
                  

                
 

              
             

               
            

              
          





   
    

 

    
     

    

               
              

           

 

 

        
     

              
                

          

             
    

         
               
               

  

               
              

                 
                

     

            
              

              
        



   
        
  

    

   

    

    
  

               
                 
                

  
  











RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING APRIL 2021 AS AUTISM AWARENESS  
MONTH IN MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP 

 
At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, 

Ingham County, Michigan, held virtually during the COVID-19 global pandemic, (517) 853-
4000, on Tuesday, March 16, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
PRESENT:         ____________________________________________________________________ 
 
                           ____________________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT:  ____________________________________________________________________ 
 
The following resolution was offered by __________________________________________________ 
 
and supported by _______________________________________________________________. 
 

A resolution recognizing April 2021 as Autism Awareness Month in Meridian 
Township. 
 

WHEREAS, Autism refers to a range of conditions characterized by challenges with 
social skills, repetitive behaviors, speech, and nonverbal communication, as well as by 
unique strengths and differences. In 2013, the American Psychiatric Association merged 
four previously distinct diagnoses into one umbrella diagnosis of autism spectrum disorder 
(ASD). These included autistic disorder, childhood disintegrative disorder, pervasive 
developmental disorder-not otherwise specified (PDD-NOS) and Asperger syndrome. It is 
the result of a neurological disorder that affects the normal functioning of the brain that is 
believed to be caused by genetic and environmental factors; and 
 

WHEREAS, Families living with autism face unique challenges and frequently 
experience significant financial costs for specialized education and support services. The 
uniqueness of each individual with autism makes the experience of living with autism 
different for each family; and 
 

WHEREAS, Autism is a lifelong condition and the necessary support and treatment 
changes as people on the spectrum move through major life phases. Their quality of life 
depends not only upon the foundation that is provided in childhood, but on ongoing 
supports that are specific to the educational, medical, social, recreational, family, and 
employment needs of the individual; and 
 

WHEREAS, Autism knows no racial, ethnic, social boundaries, family income, 
lifestyle, or educational levels, and can affect any family and any child; and 

 
WHEREAS, Autism is the fastest-growing developmental disability in the United 

States; and 
 
WHEREAS, In 2020, the CDC reported that approximately 1 in 54 children in the 

United States is diagnosed with ASD, according to 2016 data. Research also shows that boys 
are four times more likely to be diagnosed with autism than girls; and 
 



WHEREAS, April 2021 is National Autism Awareness Month; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN, That the members 
of the Meridian Township Board declare April 2021 as Autism Awareness Month in 
Meridian Township. 
 
YEAS: ___________________________________________________________________________  
 
            ___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
NAYS: ___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Resolution declared adopted. 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF INGHAM )                
 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting clerk of the Charter Township of 
Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and 
complete copy of proceedings taken by the Township Board at a regular meeting held on 
Tuesday, March 16, 2021. 
 
 
 
                                                                                     _______________________________________ 
                                                                                                  Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 
 











February 15, 2021 

Dear Meridian Township Trustees and Commissioners: 

I am a Clinical Social Worker with 25 years of experience providing counseling, consultation, and 

advocacy services to a diverse clientele. I am a strong advocate for social and environmental justice. 

My skills can continue to be an asset to the Environmental Commission in a more formal way. 

In my work and in my personal life, I problem solve issues of racism, inequity, inequality, poverty, 

homophobia, xenophobia, and various disabilities. I have worked with the very poor to those of 

privilege. I grew up poor, experienced adversity, and have used that experience to help others. I have 

an invisible disability, which better informs my work, especially as issues related to the environment 

effect my disability. Additionally I am a licensed foster parent, thus understand how disadvantage and 

trauma and effects our community in unseen ways. My vast experience is a benefit to the 

community, especially in addressing goals of diversity, equality, and inclusion.   

As a Meridian township resident, I have been actively involved with problem solving environmental 

issues.  Particularly wetland advocacy, education, and protection. This work is evident by… 

 “Protecting our Wetlands” presentation to the Environmental Commission on 11/4/20 

 Integral in making others aware that over 25% of the township is wetlands 

 Researching and educating others on local, state and federal wetland regulations 

 Problem solving issues in regard to the wetlands 

 Conceptualized and helped author the wetland brochure 

 Helping to identify communication and responsibility gaps between township commissions 

regarding the wetlands 

 Founding member of the Green Neighbor Network and gave an introductory kickoff speech  

 Referred to as “Wetland Expert” by Trustee Wisisnski at the February 2021 Environmental 

Commission meeting 

In a very short period of time, my education, advocacy, and action has helped to make positive 

change in the Meridian Township Community in regard to the wetlands.  

As much as I love the wetlands, they are not even my favorite part of nature and the environment! 

However I had to become the advocate for them. My advocacy resulted in others being more 

informed about what we need to do to protect them. My actions show my commitment to protecting 

the environment. I have turned problems into problem solving and solutions.  

I hope to continue to do that in a more formal way on the Environmental Commission. I can offer the 

Environmental Commission a unique perspective and thought process. I look forward to the 

opportunity to meet with you and discuss how I can further serve the Commission and Meridian 

Township community. 

Thank you, 

Kendra Thelen Grasseschi, MSW, LMSW, ACSW 



Kendra Thelen Grasseschi, MSW, LMSW, ACSW 
. Okemos, MI 48864 

  
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

EDUCATION: 
 8/94 – 5/96  Masters of Social Work, Michigan State University, East Lansing, MI 
  Major:  Clinical Social Work, GPA: 3.7 
 
 8/90 – 5/94 Bachelor of Science, Central Michigan University, Mt. Pleasant, MI 
  Majors:  Psychology and Family Studies 
  GPA:  Psychology 3.5, Family Studies 3.8 
 
EXPERIENCE: 
10/04-Present Clinical Social Worker/Psychotherapist, Kendra Thelen, LMSW, East Lansing, MI. Provide 

psychotherapy, consultation and advocacy services to a diverse clientele. Diagnose and 
clinically treat mental health conditions including those struggling with anxiety, depression, 
trauma, medical issues, disabilities, abuse, and self-esteem issues. Advocate and problem 
solve issues of social injustice (racism, poverty, inequality, and inequity) along with 
environmental injustices (living situation, occupational, educational, community) on a 
Clinical and Macro level.  Teamwork with medical providers, school systems, and other 
professionals to help achieve positive client outcomes.  

 
8/03 – 9/04 Contractual Therapist, Lyon Counseling Associates, P.C., East Lansing, MI.  Provided 

psychotherapy counseling to children, adolescents, college students, adults, and families.  
 
6/00 – 8/03  Administrator/Academic Advisor, Counseling Services Department, Lansing Community 

College.  Provided crisis counseling and academic advising to disadvantaged college students 
in the Women’s Resource Center and within Counseling Services.  Led educational support 
groups building self-esteem.  

 
11/00 – 7/03 Contractual Therapist, Community Care Clinic, C.E.I. Community Mental Health, Lansing, MI. 
 Provided counseling to disadvantaged children, adolescents, adults, and families.   
 
6/98 – 6/00 Wraparound Resource Coordinator, Ingham Interagency Family Preservation Initiative, C.E.I. 

Community Mental Health, Lansing, MI.  Coordinated and managed community treatment 
teams of professionals from CMH, juvenile courts, DHS (protective services & foster care). 
Led teams to wrap helpful services around disadvantaged families for better client 
outcomes. Managed team budgets.  Provided supervision and training of staff.   

 
7/96 – 7/99 Mental Health Therapist, Family Guidance Services, C.E.I. Community Mental Health, 

Lansing, MI.  Provided intensive crisis counseling and case management services to for 
actively suicidal children, adolescents, and their families to avoid psychiatric hospitalization. 
Led and facilitated treatment teams with medical professionals, courts, DHS, & collateral 
agencies.  Provided supervision and training of staff.   

 



Kendra Thelen Grasseschi 

Page 2  

10/98 & 4/99 Guest Speaker, Lansing Community College.  Lectured on family preservation services. 
Lectured on students acquiring empathy, feedback, and limit-setting skills along with 
avoiding power struggles. 

  
 
8/95 – 5/96 Mental Health Therapist Intern, Family Guidance Services, C.E.I Community mental Health, 

Lansing, MI.  Provided crisis counseling and case management services to children, 
adolescents, college students, adults, couples, and families. Coordinated services with 
collateral agencies. 

 
12/95 – 7/96 Case Manager, Crossroads, Gateway Community Services, Lansing, MI.  Provided crisis 

counseling, case management and educational services to homeless youths and their 
families.   

 
8/95 – 12/95 Direct Care Staff, Crossroads, Gateway Community Services, Lansing, MI.  Utilized feedback, 

empathy and limit-setting skills with youths in a transitional living program.  Instructed 
clients in acquiring independent living skills and study skills. 

 
12/94 – 7/96 Family Support Worker, Family Guidance Services, C.E.I. Community Mental Health, Lansing, 

MI.  Provided respite services to families.  Modeled and taught social skills to children.  
Facilitated and managed summer camp for emotionally impaired children. 

 
3/95 – 7/96 Tutor, Catholic Social Services, Lansing, MI.  Provided academic support and taught study 

and independent living skills to an emotionally impaired foster care adolescent.    
 
9/94 – 5/95  School Social Work Intern, Waverly Community Schools, Lansing, MI.  Provided individual 

therapy, play therapy, parent education and consultation.  Co-facilitated social skill building 
and therapy groups.  Performed classroom observations and assisted with behavioral 
programming. 

 
6/95 – 8/95 Direct Care Staff, Green Meadows, Lansing, MI.  Provided care to chronically mentally ill 

older adults.  Followed behavior treatment plans and assisted with independent living skills.  
 
6/94 - 12/94 Residential Technician, C.E.I. Community Mental Health, Lansing, MI.  Utilized empathy, 

feedback and limit-setting skills in providing treatment of chronically mentally ill adults.  
Assisted residents in acquiring independent and community living skills. 

 
5/93 – 5/94 Volunteer and Fill-in Overnight Supervisor, Women’s Aid Service, Mt. Pleasant, MI.  

Provided crisis-call counseling, shelter supervision, and individual counseling to 
victims/survivors of domestic violence and sexual assault. 

  
PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS: 
 Michigan Licensed Master Social Worker, Clinical and Macro Practice, Registration, #6801-

071327. 
 National Association of Social Workers, 11/97 – Present. 













RESOLUTION CALLING ON THE MICHIGAN LEGISLATURE TO APPROPRIATE ALL 
FEDERAL COVID-19 RELIEF FUNDING WITHOUT UNDUE BURDEN ON SCHOOL 

DISTRICTS 
 
At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, 

Ingham County, Michigan, held virtually during the COVID-19 global pandemic, (517) 853-
4000, on Tuesday, March 16, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
PRESENT:         ____________________________________________________________________ 
 
                           ____________________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT:  ____________________________________________________________________ 
 
The following resolution was offered by __________________________________________________ 
 
and supported by _______________________________________________________________. 
 

A resolution calling on the Michigan Legislature to appropriate all federal 
COVID-19 relief funding without undue burden on school districts. 
 

WHEREAS, It has been an incredibly difficult year for everyone. Our lives have been 
upended and we have lost over 532,000 of our fellow Americans to COVID-19. More than 
the nearly 507,000 lives we lost during World War II, the Korean War, the Vietnam War, the 
War in Afghanistan, and the Iraq War combined; and 

 
WHEREAS, With the vaccines in place, we are finally in control of how quickly we 

get beyond the pandemic and have some sense of normalcy; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Michigan Legislature has held $5.6 billion in federal COVID-19 relief 
funding hostage for over two months now. This funding was signed into law by President 
Trump in December of last year with broad bipartisan support in the United States Senate 
and Congress; and 
  

WHEREAS, This includes funding our hospitals’ and county health departments’ 
need to establish more vaccination sites, like the MSU Pavilion, in order to create the 
capacity to get shots in arms and end the pandemic; and 
 

WHEREAS, Public health experts and medical professionals have been very clear – 
vaccinating 70-90 percent of our population is the only way to end the pandemic and return 
to normal. As we continue to increase production of the vaccine, it won’t mean anything if 
our health departments and hospitals are not able to administer the doses; and 
 

WHEREAS, After two months of threats not to appropriate the funds, Legislative 
Republicans finally passed legislation that withheld over two-thirds of the funds and 
upended over half a year of work our school communities have devoted to establishing 
learning plans in accordance with legislation passed by the Legislature in August of last 
year; and 
 



WHEREAS, The legislation holds 67 percent of the vaccine funding hostage at a time 
when residents are anxiously awaiting the opportunity to be vaccinated. If the Legislature 
cannot come together to end the pandemic with such an easy choice before it, what hope is 
there for bipartisanship in the future; and 
 

WHEREAS, The legislation also holds 67 percent of the rent, mortgage, and utility 
assistance hostage, and 71 percent of the food assistance. This comes as many families don't 
know how they're going to stay in their home and provide food for their family; and 

 
WHEREAS, The bills also hold 64 percent of the funding for testing, lab expansion, 

and contract tracing hostage. Resources we need to keep the curve flattened by quickly 
identifing and mitigating the spread of the virus and new variants; and 

 
 
 WHEREAS, HB 4048 withholds nearly half of the funding our school districts need 
to implement their reopening plans; and 
 

WHEREAS, For over 6 months, school districts across Michigan have engaged in a 
very thoughtful and deliberative process to develop community-based learning plans in 
accordance with legislation the Legislature passed in August of last year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, In passing HB 4048 on March 4, the Legislature completely changed the 
rules on our school communities at the last second, upending over half a year of work the 
East Lansing, Haslett, Okemos, and Williamston school communities have devoted to 
establish their reopening plans; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Michigan Senate amended HB 4048 on March 2 and inserted a 
provision requiring school districts to begin offering 20 or more hours of in-person learning 
by March 22 or risk losing the funding they need to implement their plans; and 

 
WHEREAS, HB 4048 took effect on March 9, giving our school districts only 7 

business days to comply with this provision; and 
 
WHEREAS, This arbitrary deadline has forced the Okemos school community to 

establish an entirely new community-based learning plan in a matter of days or risk losing 
$1.6 million in federal funding due to the reckless and ill-timed actions of the Legislature; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, Many questions linger regarding this vague March 22 provision that was 
placed in the bill on March 2. For instance, the bill does not grant exceptions to allow school 
districts to retain their funding if a district experiences spread of COVID-19 and is not able 
to offer 20 or more hours of in-person learning due to efforts taken to mitigate the spread of 
COVID-19; and 
 

WHEREAS, Legislative Republicans are jeopardizing the light at the end of the 
tunnel by playing politics with the federal COVID-19 relief funding that is essential to 
mitigating spread of the virus and variants, supporting those in need, getting our children 
back to school safely, and ending the pandemic; and 
 



WHEREAS, Legislative Republicans must realize that COVID-19 is our common 
enemy, and that their actions are causing unnecessary and self-inflicted hardship on 
Michiganders after a year of unprecedented hardship and death; and 
 

WHEREAS, Appropriating all of the federal COVID-19 relief funding is a critical step 
in working together to defeat COVID-19 and return to normal; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN, That the members 
of the Meridian Township Board call on the Michigan Legislature to appropriate all federal 
COVID-19 relief funding signed into law by President Trump in December of last year with 
broad bipartisan support in the United States Senate and Congress. 

 
 

YEAS: ___________________________________________________________________________  
 
            ___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
NAYS: ___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Resolution declared adopted. 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF INGHAM )                
 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting clerk of the Charter Township of 
Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and 
complete copy of proceedings taken by the Township Board at a regular meeting held on 
Tuesday, March 16, 2021. 
 
 
 
                                                                                     _______________________________________ 
                                                                                     Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 





RESOLUTION HONORING THE LIFE, PUBLIC SERVICE, AND ENDURING LEGACY OF THE 
HONORABLE FRANK J. KELLEY, MICHIGAN’S 50TH ATTORNEY GENERAL 

 
December 31, 1924 – March 5, 2021 

 
At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Meridian, 

Ingham County, Michigan, held virtually during the COVID-19 global pandemic, (517) 853-
4000, on Tuesday, March 16, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
PRESENT:         ____________________________________________________________________ 
 
                           ____________________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT:  ____________________________________________________________________ 
 
The following resolution was offered by __________________________________________________ 
 
and supported by _______________________________________________________________. 
 

A resolution honoring the life, public service, and enduring legacy of the 
Honorable Frank J. Kelley, Michigan’s 50th Attorney General. 
 

LET IT BE KNOWN, That it is with deep appreciation for the lasting impact he left on his 
family, community, state, and nation that we offer this resolution as an expression of our most 
sincere gratitude and thankfulness to Frank J. Kelley and his family. We wish to take this moment 
to offer our sentiments of commemoration, paying tribute to the Honorable Frank J. Kelley’s 
prosperous life and enduring legacy; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Honorable Frank J. Kelley was born in Detroit, Michigan on December 31, 

1924. His father was a small business owner and Democratic political appointee who inspired his 
son to pursue a career in public service; and 

 
WHEREAS, As a young man, Mr. Kelley worked as a merchant seaman on car and 

train ferries that crossed between Mackinaw City and St. Ignace prior to the construction of 
the Mackinac Bridge; and  

 
WHEREAS, Mr. Kelley went on to earn his undergraduate and law degrees from the 

University of Detroit before moving to Alpena, Michigan where he opened his own law 
practice. Mr. Kelley went on to receive an appointment as the attorney for the City of 
Alpena; and 

 
WHEREAS, Mr. Kelley was appointed as Michigan 50th attorney general in 1961 by 

Governor John Swainson to fill a vacancy when then-Attorney General Paul Adams was appointed 
to the Michigan Supreme Court; and 

 
WHEREAS, Mr. Kelley was elected and re-elected by an overwhelming majority of the 

voters of Michigan to the position of Attorney General in 1962, 1964, 1966, 1970, 1974, 1978, 
1982, 1986, 1990, and 1994; and 

 



WHEREAS, Mr. Kelley went on to redefine the role of the Office of Attorney General over 
the course of a generation. Prior to Attorney General Kelley’s appointment, the office had largely 
been a revolving door as past attorney generals had used the office as a steppingstone to other 
endeavors; and 

 
WHEREAS, Mr. Kelly’s 37 years serving as Michigan’s attorney general from 1962 to 1999 

made him both the youngest (at 36 years old) and oldest (at 74 years old) attorney general in the 
state's history and made him the longest serving state attorney general in the nation. This earned 
Mr. Kelley the distinguished nickname as the "Eternal General"; and 

 
WHEREAS, Attorney General Kelley refocused the office on serving the public interest by 

establishing the first consumer protection, environmental, and criminal fraud divisions in a state 
attorney general office. Mr. Kelley also championed civil rights issues and was instrumental in the 
passage of Michigan’s Open Meetings and Freedom of Information Acts; and 

 
WHEREAS, Mr. Kelley never forgot that he was the “people’s lawyer.” He was known 

for standing up for the little guy much to the consternation of the executives of utilities, 
insurance companies, companies that polluted and retailers. He believed in shining a light 
on government and played a major role in helping to pass into law the Open Meetings Act 
and the Freedom of Information Act; and 

WHEREAS, Mr. Kelley prided himself on being able to represent the people in a bi-
partisan manner, working well with the five governors that he served with, regardless of 
their political party affiliation; and 

WHEREAS, Mr. Kelley was the only Michigan attorney general to be elected president of 
the National Association of Attorneys General. He was cited by his peers in all 50 states as being 
the attorney general who most furthered the cause of justice in the United States.  The Association 
honored him by naming their award for outstanding service the Kelley-Wyman award; and 
 

WHEREAS, Attorney General Kelley was a lead litigator and instrumental in the Tobacco 
Master Settlement Agreement, which 46 of the nation’s 50 attorney generals worked on. The 
landmark settlement resulted in most states receiving large multi-year payments to compensate 
for the public costs of treating tobacco-related illnesses. These settlement funds continue to help 
the state of Michigan fund the treatment of tobacco-related illnesses; and 

 
WHEREAS, during his time in office Mr. Kelley hired, trained, and mentored hundreds of 

lawyers dedicated to public service and to representing the People of the State of Michigan, many 
of whom went on to hold office as local elected officials, mayors, judges, state legislators, U.S. 
congressmen, a U.S. Senator and a governor of the State of Michigan, James J. Blanchard; and 

 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s “Eternal General” was elected to the office 10 times before term 

limits were approved by Michigan voters. With one term remaining under the newly established 
term limits, Attorney General Kelley chose not to seek re-election in 1998 as he wanted to leave 
office on his own terms; and 

 
WHEREAS, after his departure from the Office of Attorney General, Mr. Kelley founded 

Kelley Cawthorne, a prominent government relations firm in Lansing, Michigan; and 
 
WHEREAS, in 1999, Governor John Engler appointed Mr. Kelley to a seat on the Mackinac 

Island State Park Commission, which controls 80 percent of the island. In 2007, Governor Jennifer 



Granholm named Mr. Kelley as the chair of the Commission. Also, Governor Granholm appointed 
Mr. Kelley to the State Ethics Board; and 
 

WHEREAS, in 2015, Wayne State University Press published his autobiography, 
titled The People's Lawyer: The Life and Times of Frank J. Kelley, the Nation's Longest Serving 
Attorney General; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN, That this resolution 
is signed and dedicated to join with the citizens of Meridian Township and the People of the 
State of Michigan in memory of the Honorable Frank J. Kelley for his dedication and 
commitment to his family, community, state, and nation. We commend Attorney General 
Kelley for his exemplary public service and are honored to celebrate his prolific public life 
and enduring legacy. 

 
 

YEAS: ___________________________________________________________________________  
 
            ___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
NAYS: ___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Resolution declared adopted. 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF INGHAM )                
 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting clerk of the Charter Township of 
Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and 
complete copy of proceedings taken by the Township Board at a regular meeting held on 
Tuesday, March 16, 2021. 
 
 
 
                                                                                     _______________________________________ 
                                                                                     Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 



To: Meridian Township Board Members 

From: Amber Clark 
Neighborhoods & Economic Development Director 

Derek N. Perry, Deputy Township Manager 
Director of Public Works & Engineering   

Date: March 9, 2021 

RE: 2021 Citizen Survey 

Meridian Township board conducts a citizen survey every three years to better engage with residents 
on programs and services offered by the Township. Meridian Township selected the National Research 
Center (NRC) of Boulder, Colorado to conduct these surveys, with the last survey completed in 2018. 
The cost of the survey was just under $15,000 and included the traditional three part mailing to 1,600 
residents. There was an option for the 1600 selected residents to take the survey online, through the 
use of a special coupon code sent by mail.   

It is our recommendation to submit a Request for Proposal (RFP) to receive additional quotations from 
expert organizations that can assist us with the creation, implementation and analysis of the 
community survey. The board previously received quotations from Michigan State University Institute 
for Public Policy and Social Research and Cobalt Community Research that met the initial 
proposal requirements, and conformed to the previous National Resource Center's surveys. A 
comparison of the three is highlighted below: 

Sample Size Margin of Error 
National Resource Center 1600 +/- 5% 
Cobalt Community Research 1500 +/- 5% 
MSU IPPSR 8000 +/- 5% 

We are confident that both MSU IPPSR and Cobalt Community Research can provide a high quality, 
scientifically valid survey for our needs. If the Township Board is interested in other survey elements, 
such a as a larger sample size or modifying the margin of error we recommend proceeding with a full 
RFP to collect that additional information for an equitable review.  

Attachments: 
Meridian Township 2021 Community Survey RFP 
Cobalt Community Research City of Ferndale Reference 
MSU IPPSR City of  Ann Arbor Reference

13 A 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
Request for Proposal  

COMMUNITY SURVEY 

OWNER: Charter Township of Meridian Economic 
Development Department  
5151 Marsh Road Okemos, MI 48864 

CONTACT PERSON: Amber Clark, Neighborhoods & Economic Development 
Director 

CONTACT PHONE: 517.853.4568, 
E-mail: clark@meridian.mi.us

PROJECT NAME: Meridian Township Community Survey 
Charter Township of Meridian Michigan 

BIDS DUE: Friday, March ___, 2021___3pm 

BID SUBMISSION: bids@meridian.mi.us 

The Charter Township of Meridian, Economic Development Department is issuing this request for 
proposal (RFP) for a COMMUNITY SURVEY to be created, implemented and analyzed for our 
community by an organization experienced in providing expert analysis of survey results. Our 
survey will be directed to the residents of Meridian Township and the consultant will assist 
Township staff in the creation of an unbiased survey to better develop our community. The 
consultant will summarize the findings of the survey and present that as a final report to Meridian 
Township officials. Proposals will be received at the Meridian Township Clerks Office, 5151 
Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864, up until 3:00pm on Friday, March _____,  2021. 

PROJECT BACKGROUND: 
The Charter Township of Meridian conducts a Citizen Survey every three years to receive input 
from the general public on programs and services we offer in our community. In past years the 
Township has utilized National Resource Center (NRC) as the organization to conduct the survey. 
In 2021 the Meridian Township Board approved to find an alternative organization to provide our 
community with an unbiased and accurate survey. Meridian Township is requesting assistance 
with the creation, implementation and analysis of the community survey to be completed by May 
2021.  

DESIRED ELEMENTS OF THE COMMUNITY SURVEY: 
• Mail in survey for validity of resident input
• Conducted as soon as Township Board gives approval
• Sample size of registered voters at 1% margin of error
• Sample size of registered voters at 5% margin of error
• Analysis provided with comparisons across the nation
• Cost of the survey at less than $15,000 (should the estimated amount be over $15,000 this will

not disqualify the bidder)

CONTENT OF PROPOSALS: 
• Information regarding the firm



• References (4) of comparable projects 
• Estimated timeline of the project 
• Expertise related to surveying a community about Marijuana 
• Examples of survey’s completed by the organization with questions and results review 

included 
• Include information related to additional Fees/surcharges 
• Why Meridian Township should choose your organization for our survey 
• How does your organization ensures valid responses on mail in surveys 
• How does  your organization ensures valid responses on online surveys 

 
 

JUDGING OF PROPOSALS: 
 
The Township will judge proposals received based on professional qualifications and experience, 
completeness of proposal, quality of product, references, and total bid cost. The Township reserves 
the right to reject all bids, waive informalities or irregularities and accept the bid that it determines 
to be in the best interest of its residents, which may not necessarily be the lowest bid. 

 
About Meridian Township: 
 

Meridian Township is home to over 43,000 residents east of East Lansing, in the Northeast 
corner of Ingham County. Nestled off the bustling Lansing metro area, our community is 
ranked as #1 Best place to Live in Michigan,  by Niche and Newsweek Magazine with the top 
ranked school district, 1,500 acres of Township and County Parks, home of Lake Lansing Park, 
prime neighborhoods supported by growing educated families. Residents partake in the 
modest cost of living and access to great amenities, this is why we call Meridian Township, “A 
Prime community!” 

 
Scope of Work: 
The selected consulting agency will: 

-Assist staff with finding the accurate number of residents to sample to create a 1% margin of 
error and associated costs 
-Assist staff with finding the accurate number of residents to sample to create a 5% margin of 
error and associated costs 
-Work with Meridian Township staff to create a survey that delivers the questions in an 
unbiased manner as possible. 
-Conduct citizen survey 
-Analysis results of survey 
-Report to Meridian Township staff on the findings of the survey 
 

Topics of interest the survey will cover: 
 Recreational Marijuana 
 Deer Cull Program 
 Neighborhoods Program and Engagement 
 Parks Programs and Services 
 Police & Fire Programs and Services 
 Pathway Program/Improvements 
 Water and Sewer Services 
 Community Planning and Development 
 Broadband/Internet in the Township 
 Road Improvements 
 Village of Okemos 
 Haslett Village Square 
 Municipal Facilities 
 Communications and Engagement 
 







From: Kyle Pollet
To: Amber Clark
Subject: Ferndale Cobalt Survey
Date: Thursday, March 11, 2021 9:24:57 AM

Hi Amber,

Thanks for reaching out about our satisfaction with Cobalt Community Survey.

Here are our results from the survey so you can see what their product looks like for yourself:
https://www.cobaltcommunityresearch.org/ferndale.html

For the services received, I believe we paid about $12,000. I would say we have a high satisfaction
rate with their results and service. William from Cobalt made himself available throughout the
process and he really impressed me after we asked him to present the results at 4 different
community meetings after the survey ended.

We have been working to utilize the results; in our case, the high desire for parks improvements has
justified continued discretionary spending throughout the unknowns of Covid.

I’d also recommend looking into FlashVote as an option: https://www.flashvote.com/ I recently
learned of them through an Alliance for Innovation conference. Their price point is supposedly much
lower for a more pinpointed survey.

I am happy to answer any other questions on Cobalt you may have. I wish you luck in getting the info
you need to continue your work for Meridian.

Best,

Kyle Pollet 
Assistant City Manager
City of Ferndale
248-546-2360
kpollet@ferndalemi.gov





Entity/Organization Recommendation Type/Use Address Notes

Autism Centers of MichiganOpsommer Medical 2549 Jolly Rd #380, Okemos, MI 48864

Medical facility to provide children and 

young adults with ABA therapy. Opened 

since February of 2018 when we last added 

locations.

Lansing Urgent Care - 

Haslett Opsommer Medical 16945 Marsh Rd, Haslett, MI 48840

Urgent Care facilities are essential. We 

expanded to an adjacent medical facility in 

February of 2018, but missed this adjacent 

facility.

Gilden Woods Early Care 

and Preschool - Haslett Opsommer Daycare 16955 Marsh Rd, Haslett, MI 48840

Daycare is an essential service and this 

daycare is just beyond our Township 

border.

Monticello's Market & 

Butcher Block Opsommer Grocery 16912 Marsh Rd, Haslett, MI 48840

We included Costco and Bath Meijer in 

February of 2018. Grocery stores are 

essential. This grocer should have been 

included back in February of 2018 to be fair 

to all grocers on or near our Township 

border. The Bath Township Meijer is far 

further from our Township border.

Hope Network Neuro 

Rehabilitation – East Opsommer Medical 2775 E Lansing Dr, East Lansing, MI 48823

One of only two Neuro Rehabilitation 

centers in the region.

13. B




